|
() ! | % ~
., | i !
; P 418
» 2 50 A \~ &
‘ - 1
¢« . )
e 3
T 1 I
. A - r |

Council Meeting Agenda

JANUARY 15, 2020
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
6:00 P.M. Regular Session
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025

MAYOR Paul McNamara
DEPUTY MAYOR Consuelo Martinez

COUNCIL MEMBERS Olga Diaz
John Masson
Michael Morasco

CITY MANAGER Jeffrey Epp
CITY CLERK Zack Beck
CITY ATTORNEY Michael McGuinness
DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Bill Martin
DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio



ELECTRONIC MEDIA:
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.

The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system. The media
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact
information for the person presenting the media.

The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak. Materials shown to
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.

The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable
to live presentations.




January 15, 2020
6:00 P.M. Meeting

Escondido City Council
Mobilehome Rent Review Board

CALL TO ORDER

MOMENT OF REFLECTION:

City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening meeting.
The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not endorse or sanction
any remarks made by indlividuals during this time. If you wish to be recognized during this portion of the agenda, please
notify the City Clerk in advance.

FLAG SALUTE

ROLL CALL: Diaz, Martinez, Masson, Morasco, McNamara

PRESENTATIONS: Police Chief Promotion - Edward Varso
Police Captain Promotion - David Cramer

CLOSED SESSION REPORT

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the legislative body. State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. (Please
refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE: Depending on the number of requests, comments
may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers
will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion. However,
Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request
or at the request of staff or a member of the public.

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB)




2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council)
Request the City Council approve the City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant humbers:

337241 — 337456 dated December 11, 2019
337457 — 337682 dated December 18, 2019
337683 — 337874 dated December 24, 2019
337875 — 338077 dated December 31, 2019

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Joan Ryan)
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meeting of December 18, 2019

4, RESERVE POLICE OFFICER AUTHORITY -
Request the City Council approve granting the Chief of Police authority to supervise the Reserve Police
Officers.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Edward Varso)
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-05 (First Reading and Introduction)

5. BID AWARD FOR THE MITCHELL ROOM AND CREDIT UNION ROOF DECK REPLACEMENT
PROJECT, AND A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT -
Request the City Council approve awarding the bid to Wanke, Industrial, Commercial, Residential, Inc.
of San Diego California, determined to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder; authorizing
the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a Public Services Agreement in the amount of $154,178;
authorizing staff to approve change orders up to 20 percent of the bid price to replace the roof deck
above the Mitchell Room and the Escondido Credit Union Project; and approve the budget adjustment
needed to cover the roof deck replacement costs.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Joseph Goulart)
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-09

6. ACCEPTANCE OF $40,000 SAHM FAMILY FOUNDATION GRANT -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Communications and Community Services
Department to accept a $40,000 Sahm Family Foundation grant and approve the budget adjustment
needed to expend the funds. These funds will be utilized to purchase new furniture for the Park Avenue
Community Center (PACC) common areas, and to replace aging pool tables in the PACC's Billiards
Room.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Communication & Community Services Department:
Joanna Axelrod)

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-11

CONSENT RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/RRB)

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/RRB at a previous
City Council/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting. (The title of Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are
deemed to have been read and further reading waived.)



PUBLIC HEARINGS

7. SHORT-FORM RENT INCREASE APPLICATION SUNDANCE MHC, LP (FILE NO. 0697-20-
10224) -
Request the City Council approve granting an increase of 75 percent of the change in the Consumer
Price Index (CPI), or 2.087 percent (an average of $16.66) for the period of June 30, 2018, to June
30, 2019.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin)
RENT REVIEW BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01

8. SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT - DISCOUNT TIRE
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT (PHG 19-0031 AND PHG 19-0032) -
Request the City Council conduct a public hearing on the Discount Tire Redevelopment Project proposal,
which includes a Specific Plan Amendment and a Conditional Use Permit for four adjacent lots at the
southwest corner of South Escondido Boulevard and West 2nd Avenue; and take action on the
recommendations of City Staff and the Planning Commission, which recommends that the City Council:
Introduce Ordinance No. 2020-02, for a Specific Plan Amendment to reassign the project site from the
Historic Downtown District of the Downtown Specific Plan, via an adjustment of the boundary between
these two districts; and adopt Resolution No. 2020-03, for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the
demolition of an existing tire shop and bridal shop, and the construction of a new tire shop in their
place, with associated parking, landscaping, and stormwater facilities.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin)
A) ORDINANCE NO. 2020-02 (First Reading and Introduction) B) RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03

9. ADOPTION OF A UTILITY BILLING COLLECTION AND DISCONTINUATION OF SERVICE
POLICY -
Request the City Council approve the Utility Billing Collection and Discontinuance of Service Policy, and
repeal Chapter 31-9 and amending Chapter 31-20 of the Escondido Municipal Code.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Joan Ryan)
A) RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05 B) ORDINANCE NO. 2020-04 (First Reading and Introduction)

CURRENT BUSINESS

10. CITYWIDE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT TO FUND MUNICIPAL SERVICES FOR NEW
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT -
Request the City Council provide direction to prepare documents necessary for the formation of a
Citywide Community Facilities District to offset ongoing municipal costs of serving new residential
development.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio)
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-02



11.

CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIMES -
Request the City Council review Section 2-21 of the Escondido Municipal Code pertaining to the time
of City Council Meetings and provide direction to staff.

Staff Recommendation: Provide Direction (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck)

FUTURE AGENDA

12,

FUTURE AGENDA -

The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed.

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck)

COUNCIL MEMBERS SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS

CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. This report is also available on the City’s website,
www.escondido.org.

e WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT -

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the legislative body. State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers
are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.

ADJOURNMENT

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location
January 22 Wednesday 5:00 & 6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers
January 29 - - No Meeting -
February 5 Wednesday 5:00 & 6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers
February 12 Wednesday 5:00 & 6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers




TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to
the City Clerk. Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged. Comments
are generally limited to 3 minutes.

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”
Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above.

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at
http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx

Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk. To address the Council, use the podium in the
center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone.

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE:

. Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
o In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall
o Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the

Council meeting.

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING: Any supplemental writings
or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council
Chambers while the meeting is in session.

LIVE BROADCAST

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 — Escondido Gov TV.
They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.
The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at
www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming —City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the
home page.

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session.

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays
of the month at 5:00 in Closed Session and 6:00 in Open Session.
(Verify schedule with City Clerk’s Office)
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the Community Development
Commission, Escondido Joint Powers Financing Authority,
and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board.

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION
Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at

839-4643. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable
arrangements to ensure accessibility.

Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired — please see the City Clerk.




TN
ESCONDIDO

City of Choi

Consent Item No. 1 January 15, 2020

AFFIDAVITS

OF

ITEM

POSTING




o
ESCONDIDO
ID(

City of Choice

B —

CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

Consent Item No. 2 January 15, 2020 File No. 0400-40

SUBJECT: Approval of Warrants
DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

Request approval for City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers:

337241 — 337456 dated December 11, 2019
337457 — 337682 dated December 18, 2019
337683 — 337874 dated December 24, 2019
337875 — 338077 dated December 31, 2019

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The total amount of the warrants for the following periods are as follows:

December 5 — December 11, 2019, is $ 1,589,419.51
December 12 — December 18, 2019, is $ 1,346,333.85
December 19 — December 24, 2019, is $ 638,167.26
December 25 — December 31, 2019, is $ 1,285,999.76

BACKGROUND:

The Escondido Municipal Code Section 10-49 states that warrants or checks may be issued and paid
prior to audit by the City Council, provided the warrants or checks are certified and approved by the
Director of Finance as conforming to the current budget. These warrants or checks must then be
ratified and approved by the City Council at the next regular Council meeting.

Staff Report - Council



CITY OF ESCONDIDO

December 18, 2019
6:00 P.M. Meeting Minutes

Escondido City Council

CALL TO ORDER

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, December
18, 2019 in the City Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor McNamara presiding.

MOMENT OF REFLECTION
Zack Beck, City Clerk, led the Moment of Reflection.

FLAG SALUTE
Troop 649 Presented the colors and led the flag salute.

ATTENDANCE
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Deputy Mayor Consuelo Martinez,
Councilmember John Masson, Councilmember Michael Morasco, and Mayor Paul McNamara. Quorum present.

Also present were: Jeffrey Epp, City Manager; Michael McGuinness, City Attorney; Bill Martin, Director of
Community Development; Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services; and Zack Beck, City Clerk.

PRESENTATIONS
Dr. Roy Archer, received a Certificate of Recognition.

Rincon Band of Luisefio Indians presented an Economic Impact Report
PROCLAMATIONS:
Craig Carter, Police Chief, received a proclamation in honor of his retirement.

Michelle Bedoya, Nelson Feliciano, Miguel Carmona, Myriam Padilla and Ron Stark received a proclamation in
honor of Drugged Driving Awareness month.

CLOSED SESSION REPORT
None.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

Patricia Borchmann — Requested that the City Council consider placing an item on the future
agenda related to an action taken by the mayors of Oceanside, Carlsbad, Vista, San Marcos
and Escondido JPA for the Highway 78 corridor.

CONSENT CALENDAR

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Councilmember Masson to approve all Consent
Calendar items except items 7, 8, 9, 11, 13, 15 and 20. Approved unanimously.

December 18, 2019 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 1 of 6



1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB)

APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council)
Request the City Council approve the City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers:

e 336367 —336532 dated November 13, 2019
e 336533 -336811 dated November 20, 2019
e 336812 —-337040 dated November 26, 2019

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Joan Ryan)
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meeting of November 20, 2019

4, BUDGET ADJUSTMENT AND LOAN TO THE CALIFORNIA CENTER FOR THE ARTS,
ESCONDIDO -
Request the City Council approve a budget adjustment to facilitate a loan totaling up to $100,000 from
the City's Public Facilities Fund to the California Center for the Arts, Escondido (CCAE) to finance
Conference Center furnishings.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Manager's Office: Jay Petrek)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-161

5. DELEGATING DUTIES RELATED TO THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO'S 401(k), 457(b), AND
RETIREMENT HEALTH SAVINGS PLANS -
Request the City Council approve delegating responsibility for the plan management, both settlor and
fiduciary in nature, associated with the operation and maintenance of the plans to the Director of
Finance.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Jessica Perpetua)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-165

6. AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY USE OF FACILITIES WITH CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF
FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION (CAL FIRE) AT KIT CARSON PARK -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Real Property Manager to execute an Agreement for
Emergency Use of Facilities with CAL FIRE at Kit Carson Park.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-174

7. ANNUAL DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the destruction of City records as set forth in Exhibit "A,"
which are attached to Resolution No. 2019-191, for the following departments and divisions: City
Attorney, City Clerk, City Manager, City Treasurer, Community Development, Community Services,
Employee Benefits, Engineering, Finance, Fire, HARRF, Housing, Human Resources, Library, Payroll,
Police, Public Works, Risk Management, and Utilities.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck)

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-175

Moved by Councilmember Diaz, seconded by Deputy Mayor Martinez to approve authorizing the destruction of
City records as set forth in Exhibit "A," which are attached to Resolution No. 2019-191, for the following
departments and divisions: City Attorney, City Clerk, City Manager, City Treasurer, Community Development,
Community Services, Employee Benefits, Engineering, Finance, Fire, HARRF, Housing, Human Resources,
Library, Payroll, Police, Public Works, Risk Management, and Utilities. Approved unanimously.

December 18, 2019 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 2 of 8



8. THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE CONSULTING AGREEMENT FOR THE LAKE WOHLFORD DAM
REPLACEMENT PROJECT -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor and the City Clerk to execute a Third
Amendment to the Consulting Agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation, in the amount of $362,530
for consulting and engineering services to study alternatives to the Lake Wohlford Dam Replacement
Project.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-178

Moved by Councilmember Morasco, seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve authorizing the Mayor and
the City Clerk to execute a Third Amendment to the Consulting Agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation, in
the amount of $362,530 for consulting and engineering services to study alternatives to the Lake Wohlford
Dam Replacement Project. Approved unanimously.

9. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2019-179 APPROVING RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION
PAYMENT SCHEDULE (ROPS20-21) FOR JULY 2020 THRU JUNE 2021 -
Request the City Council approve the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS20-21) so that
the Successor Agency may continue to make payments due for enforceable obligations.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Joan Ryan)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-179

Moved by Councilmember Diaz, seconded by Councilmember Masson to approve the Recognized Obligation
Payment Schedule (ROPS20-21) so that the Successor Agency may continue to make payments due for
enforceable obligations. Approved unanimously.

10. MICROSOFT LICENSING ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Director of Information Systems to execute, on behalf
of the City of Escondido, a three-year agreement with Dell in the amount of $876,330.66 to provide a
Microsoft Enterprise Licensing Agreement with Software Assurance.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Information Systems Department: Robert Van De Hey)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-180

11. ACCEPT REAL PROPERTY DONATION AGREEMENT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED ON LINCOLN
AVENUE (APN 229-101-23) -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the City Manager to execute documents necessary to
accept the donation of property located on Lincoln Avenue (APN 233-101-23) to the City of Escondido.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-181

Moved by Councilmember Morasco, seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve authorizing the City Manager
to execute documents necessary to accept the donation of property located on Lincoln Avenue (APN 233-101-
23) to the City of Escondido. Approved unanimously.

12. PURCHASE TWENTY-TWO 2020 FORD HYBRID INTERCEPTOR UTILITY VEHICLES -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Fleet Services Division of the Public Works Department
to purchase twenty-two (22) Ford Hybrid Police Interceptor Utility Vehicles from Fritts Ford of Riverside,
California, in the amount of $852,276.92, by attaching to the County of Riverside's RFQ PUARC-1634,
(Request for Quote Purchasing Riverside County) and approving the disposal of the surplus vehicles
via auction.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Joseph Goulart)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-182

December 18, 2019 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 3 of 8



13.

AWARD PURCHASE OF ONE GAPVAX HV-44 HYDRO-EXCAVATION TRUCK -

Request the City Council authorize the purchase of one (1) GapVax Hydro-Excavation truck for a total
purchase amount of $497,975.25.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Joseph Goulart)

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-183

Motion by Councilmember Diaz, seconded by Councilmember Masson to authorize the purchase of one (1)
GapVax Hydro-Excavation truck for a total purchase amount of $497,975.25. Approved unanimously.

14,

15.

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE COMPUTER AIDED DISPATCH (CAD) MASTER
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT -

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a Second Amendment
to the Maintenance Agreement with Northrop Grumman Information Technology, Inc., for the existing
Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) System.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter)

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-185
ALARM MANAGEMENT SERVICES -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor and the City Clerk to execute a Consulting
Agreement with Alarm Program Systems, LLC for alarm management services for the Police and Fire
Departments.
Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter)

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-186

Moved by Councilmember Diaz, seconded by Deputy Mayor Martinez to approve authorizing the Mayor and the
City Clerk to execute a Consulting Agreement with Alarm Program Systems, LLC for alarm management services
for the Police and Fire Departments. Approved unanimously.

16.

17.

18.

MOBILE DATA COMPUTER PURCHASE FOR PATROL VEHICLES -

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Chief of Police or his designee to execute necessary
documents on behalf of the City of Escondido to purchase seventy-nine (79) mobile data computers
for police patrol vehicles.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-187

FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE CONSULTING AGREEMENT FOR THE CITRACADO PARKWAY
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT -

Request the City Council approve authorizing a Fifth Amendment to the Consultant Agreement with
Brian F. Smith and Associates, Inc. for archeological services in the amount of $392,600 for the
Citracado Parkway Extension Project.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-189

APPROVAL OF CALPERS INDUSTRIAL DISABILITY FOR POLICE CHIEF CRAIG CARTER -

Request the City Council approve the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS)

Industrial Disability Retirement for Police Chief Craig Carter.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Jessica Perpetua)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-190

December 18, 2019 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 4 of 8



19.

20.

FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 STATE OF CALIFORNIA CITIZENS' OPTION FOR PUBLIC SAFETY
PROGRAM GRANT -

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a Fiscal Year
2019-20 Citizens' Option for Public Safety Program Grant in the amount of $231,481; approve grant
expenditures consistent with guidelines in AB1913; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee to
execute grant documents on behalf of the City; and approve budget adjustments needed to spend
grant funds.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter)

FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 SAN DIEGO COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT FOUNDATION LIFE
SAVING EQUIPMENT GRANT -

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a Fiscal Year
2019-20 San Diego Law Enforcement Foundation Grant in the amount of $2,431.79; authorize the Chief
of Police or his designee to execute grant documents on behalf of the City; and approve budget
adjustments needed to spend grant funds.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter)

Moved by Deputy Mayor Martinez, seconded by Councilmember Masson to approve authorizing the Escondido
Police Department to accept a Fiscal Year 2019-20 San Diego Law Enforcement Foundation Grant in the amount
of $2,431.79; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee to execute grant documents on behalf of the City;
and approve budget adjustments needed to spend grant funds. Approved unanimously.

CONSENT RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/RRB)

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/RRB at a previous
City Council/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting. (The title of Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are
deemed to have been read and further reading waived.)

21.

REZONE, MASTER AND PRECISE DEVELOPMENT PLAN, TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP,
GRADING EXEMPTION, AND SPECIFIC ALIGNMENT PLAN - NUTMEG HOMES RESIDENTIAL
PROJECT (SUB 18-0005 AND ENV 18-0005) -
Approved on November 20, 2019 with a vote of 5/0

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-19 (Second Reading and Adoption)

PUBLIC HEARINGS

22.

SHORT-FORM RENT INCREASE APPLICATION GREENCREST MOBILEHOME PARK (FILE NO.
0697-20-10225) -

Request the City Council approve granting an increase of 75 percent of the change in the Consumer
Price Index (CPI), or 2.087 percent (an average of $9.88) for the period of June 30, 2018, to June 30,
2019.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin)
RENT REVIEW BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2019-05

Jim Younce - Park Representative, spoke in favor of the short-form rent increase.

Moved by Deputy Mayor Martinez, seconded by Councilmember Masson to approve granting an increase of 75
percent of the change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI), or 2.087 percent (an average of $9.88) for the period
of June 30, 2018, to June 30, 2019. Approved unanimously.

December 18, 2019 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 5 of 8



23. AMENDMENT TO FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 HUD ANNUAL ACTION PLAN -
Request the City Council approve amending the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) Annual Action Plan to re-allocate Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding to the
existing Ballfield Light LED Retrofit Program and new Old Escondido Street Sign Replacement Project,
and approve a budget adjustment in the amount of $240,000.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-184

Moved by Councilmember Masson, seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve amending the Fiscal Year
2019-20 Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Annual Action Plan to re-allocate Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) funding to the existing Ballfield Light LED Retrofit Program and new Old Escondido Street
Sign Replacement Project, and approve a budget adjustment in the amount of $240,000. Approved
unanimously.

24. ALLOCATION OF HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM (HOME) FUNDS TO SAN
DIEGO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Director of Community Development to preliminarily
commit federal HOME funds to San Diego Habitat for Humanity for the acquisition of 245 E. El Norte
Parkway and construction of 10 affordable homeowners units, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk
to execute Affordable Housing Loan Agreements and all necessary loan and supporting agreements in
forms acceptable to the City Attorney.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin)
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-188
Lori Pfeiler - Spoke in favor of the program.

Moved by Councilmember Diaz, seconded by Councilmember Morasco to approve authorizing the Director of
Community Development to preliminarily commit federal HOME funds to San Diego Habitat for Humanity for
the acquisition of 245 E. El Norte Parkway and construction of 10 affordable homeowners units, and authorizing
the Mayor and City Clerk to execute Affordable Housing Loan Agreements and all necessary loan and supporting
agreements in forms acceptable to the City Attorney. Approved with four yes votes. (Masson - Abstain)

CURRENT BUSINESS

25. UNCLASSIFIED SERVICE SCHEDULE AND SALARY PLANS -
Request the City Council approve amending and re-establishing the Salary Schedule for the Unclassified
and Management Groups and amending the Part-time Salary Plan.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Jessica Perpetua)
A) RESOLUTION NO. 2019-139 B) RESOLUTION NO. 2019-144

Moved by Councilmember Morasco, seconded by Councilmember Masson to approve amending and re-
establishing the Salary Schedule for the Unclassified and Management Groups and amending the Part-time
Salary Plan. Approved unanimously.

26. CITY COUNCIL MEMBER AND MAYOR COMPENSATION -
Request the City Council to approve Ordinance No. 2019-20 amending Escondido Municipal Code
Section 2-28 increasing the salary of City councilmembers and Mayor by 10% for the two-year period
from December 2018, and becoming effective in December 2020, pursuant to Section B(9) of the City
Council Rules and Policies and Government Code Section 36516 et. seq. Council may further consider
changes to the part time status of councilmembers.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Attorney's Office: Michael R. McGuinness)
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-20 (First Reading and Introduction)

December 18, 2019 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 6 of 8



Ed Gallo - Expressed opposition to the change in Council Member and Mayoral compensation.
Laura Hunter - Expressed support for the change in Council Member and Mayoral compensation.

Moved by Councilmember Morasco, seconded by Councilmember Diaz to not approve Ordinance No. 2019-20
amending Escondido Municipal Code Section 2-28 increasing the salary of City councilmembers and Mayor by
10% for the two-year period from December 2018, and becoming effective in December 2020, pursuant to
Section B(9) of the City Council Rules and Policies and Government Code Section 36516 et. seq. Approved 4-
1 (Masson - No)

27. REVIEW OF CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION LIMITS -
Request the City Council to approve Ordinance No. 2019-22 amending the City Municipal Election
Campaign Control Ordinance to lower the maximum personal contributions from $4,300 to $250 for
city council candidates and from $4,300 to $800 for mayoral candidates. Council may further consider
changes to the acceptance and/or disclosures of contributions from persons having business before
the City.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Attorney's Office: Michael R. McGuinness)

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-22 (First Reading and Introduction)

Moved by Deputy Mayor Martinez, seconded by Councilmember Morasco to postpone this item to a future City
Council meeting. Approved unanimously.

FUTURE AGENDA

FUTURE AGENDA -
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed.

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck)

COUNCIL MEMBERS SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS

Councilmember Morasco - Attended the School/Council Subcommittee Meeting and the California Center
for the Arts/Council subcommittee meeting.

Deputy Mayor Martinez - Attended the California Center for the Arts/Council subcommittee meeting.
Councilmember Masson - Attended the San Diego County Water Authority Board meeting.

Councilmember Diaz - Attended the School/Council Subcommittee Meeting.

CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. This report is also available on the City’s website,
www.escondido.org.

e WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT

December 18, 2019 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 7 of 8



ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

Robroy Fawcett - Spoke in favor of free speech related to campaign contributions.

Ed Gallo - Wished everyone a Merry Christmas, Happy Hanukkah, Happy Kwanza and Happy
Holidays.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor McNamara adjourned the meeting at 8:33 p.m.

MAYOR CITY CLERK

December 18, 2019 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 8 of 8



o
ESCONDIDO
ID(

City of Choice

B —

CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

Consent Item No. 4 January 15, 2020 File No. 0270-40

SUBJECT: Reserve Police Officer Authority

DEPARTMENT: Police Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council introduce Ordinance No. 2020-05 allowing the Chief of Police to
regulate the authority of Reserve Police Officers.

PREVIOUS ACTION:

None

BACKGROUND:

The Escondido Police Department has five Reserve Police Officers who volunteer their time and
provide a wide variety of services to the community of Escondido. Three of the reserve officers are
eligible to be granted full police powers while in an off duty status because they have completed the
State of California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training (POST) Level 1 course and
the POST Level 1 training requirements. The three eligible reserve officers have met the same
training standards as a regular police officer which consists of 664 hours of academy training and four
months of field training. The eligible reserve officers have a combined total of 74 years of law
enforcement experience and 62 years of serving the City of Escondido.

California Penal Code, Section 830.6: authorizes the appointment of a reserve city police officer who
is qualified and has completed state required training to be designated as a peace officer; allows local
governments to adopt ordinances granting full peace officer powers to qualified reserve police
officers; and provides additional rights and protections to reserve police officers.

Currently, Level 1 reserve officers are only granted full police powers while on duty. When not on
duty, they are considered private persons (non-police officers) in the eyes of the law. Having full
police powers authorizes the reserve officers to act in an emergency situation and to better serve the
citizens of Escondido at all times.

The adoption of Ordinance No. 2020-05 would authorize the Chief of Police to grant Escondido
Reserve Police Officers who have completed a POST Level | course of instruction, and any
requirements established by the Chief of Police, full peace officer powers and duties in accordance
with California Penal Code section 830.1. Escondido Reserve Police Officers who have not
completed the POST Level | course of instruction and all training requirements established by the

Staff Report - Council



Reserve Police Officer Authority
January 15, 2020
Page 2

Chief of Police would retain limited peace officer powers commensurate with their training and
assignment.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:

Edward Varso, Chief of Police
1/9/2020 10:30 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Ordinance No. 2020-05



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-05
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA,
AMENDING ESCONDIDO MUNICIPAL CODE
CHAPTER NINETEEN, ARTICLE ONE, TO
ADDRESS RESERVE POLICE OFFICER
AUTHORITY
WHEREAS, California Penal Code section 830.6 authorizes the appointment of
Reserve Police Officers who have completed the State of California Commission on
Peace Officer Standards and Training (“POST”) courses commensurate with their
assigned duties and level of supervision; and
WHEREAS, the Escondido Police Department has four (4) Reserve Police
Officers who volunteer their time and provide a wide variety of services to the City of
Escondido; and
WHEREAS, the Reserve Police Officers who successfully complete a Reserve
Officer Level | POST course of instruction may operate independently and must meet
the same training standards as regular police officers; and
WHEREAS, adoption of this ordinance would authorize Escondido Reserve
Police Officers who have completed a POST Level | course of instruction, and any
requirements established by the Chief of Police, to have full peace officer powers in
accordance with California Penal Code section 830.6(a)(2), and
WHEREAS, the Escondido Reserve Police Officers who have not completed the
POST Level | course of instruction and all training requirements established by the

Chief of Police would retain limited peace officer powers commensurate with their

training and assignment.



The City Council of the City of Escondido, California, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN

as follows:

SECTION 1. That the above recitals are incorporated as though set forth in
this section.
SECTION 2. That Escondido Municipal Code Chapter Nineteen, Article One,

Section 19-3, is amended to read as follows:

Section 19-13. Reserve police officers.

The Chief of Police may appoint Reserve Police Officers who have completed
training certified by the State of California Commission on Peace Officer
Standards and Training (POST). Reserve Police Officers will have limited peace
officer authority that is commensurate with their training and assignment.
However, the Chief of Police may grant full peace officer powers and duties, as
provided in California Penal Code section 830.1, to those Reserve Officers who
have completed an appropriate POST Level 1 course of instruction and all
Escondido Police Department required training. The Chief of Police may
suspend, limit or withdraw the appointment of Reserve Police Officer at any time
for any reason.

SECTION 3. SEPARABILITY. If any section, subsection sentence, clause,
phrase or portion of this ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct
and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining

portions.

SECTION 4. That as of the effective date of this ordinance, all ordinances or

parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

SECTION 5. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to certify to the passage of
this ordinance and to cause the same or a summary to be prepared in accordance with

Government Code Section 36933, to be published one time within 15 days of its



passage in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the County and

circulated in the City of Escondido.



o
ESCONDIDO
ID(

City of Choice

B —

CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

Consent Item No. 5 January 15, 2020 File No. 0470-35

SUBJECT: Bid Award for the Mitchell Room and Credit Union Roof Deck Replacement
Project, and a Budget Adjustment

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Building Maintenance

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-09, awarding the bid to Wanke,
Industrial, Commercial, Residential, Inc. (W.I.C.R, Inc.) of San Diego California, determined to be the
lowest responsive and responsible bidder; authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a Public
Services Agreement in the amount not to exceed $154,178; and authorizing staff to approve change
orders up to 20 percent of the bid price to replace the roof deck above the Mitchell Room and the
Escondido Credit Union Project (Project). In addition, City Council is requested to approve the
attached budget adjustment (Attachment “2”) needed to cover the roof deck replacement costs.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The estimated cost to replace the roof deck above the Mitchell Room and the Escondido Credit Union
is $185,000. Funding of $65,000 to cover the Mitchell Room roof deck replacement will be covered
by Public, Education and Government (PEG) fees collected from cable service providers. The
remaining costs of $120,000 will be covered by additional funding from the Redevelopment Property
Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF).

BACKGROUND:

The roof decks above the Mitchell Room and the Escondido Credit Union are approximately thirty
years old. During last year’s rain events, both roof decks started to leak beyond normal repairs. Both
decks will require a complete replacement of the flooring, flashing, stucco, and drains to alleviate the
roof leaks.

On December 10, 2019, two (2) bids were received in response to the advertised request for bids on
this Project. The bid results are listed below:

1. Wanke, Industrial, Commercial, Residential, Inc., (WIRC) $154,178.00
2. Empire Works Reconstruction and Painting $220,518.00

Staff recommends that the bid submitted by W.I.C.R., Inc. be considered the lowest most responsive
and responsible bidder, and that the contract be awarded to W.I.C.R., Inc.

Staff Report - Council



Bid Award for the Mitchell Room and Escondido Credit Union Roof Replacement, and a Budget
Adjustment

January 15, 2020

Page 2

PEG fees are generated by cable service providers operating within the public rights-of-way of a city.
These cable providers shall pay a fee to the city equal to five (5) percent of their gross revenue
pursuant to California Public Utilities Code Section 5840, effective January 1, 2007. PEG fees are
restricted for the use of programming, equipment, and general expenses related to Public, Education,
and Government broadcasting.

The Mitchell Room is used as a secondary location for broadcasting public, educational, and
governmental functions; City Council meetings, workshops, and subcommittee meetings. In order to
protect the integrity of the electronic broadcasting equipment and maintain the ability to broadcast
governmental functions, PEG fees will be used as a funding source for the roof replacement on the
Mitchell Room.

There is a history of structural and property damage inside the Mitchell Room and the Credit Union
resulting from the deteriorated of roofing materials during significant rain events. Staff suspects, from
the visual damage inside the Mitchell Room and Credit Union, that there is significant unforeseen
structural damage below both roof decks. The extent of the unforeseen structural damage will only
become visible after both roof demolitions are completed.

Due to the unforeseen damage below the roof floor substrate and not visibly identified during the bid
inspection, staff requests authorization to approve change orders up to twenty-percent of the total bid
price not to exceed $185,000. In order to avoid costs associated with delays in completion of the roof
deck replacements, staff requests authorization to approve change orders up to 20 percent of the bid
price, as work necessary may exceed staff's 10 percent authority.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:

Joseph Goulart, Director of Public Works
1/9/2020 9:11 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment “1” Bid Documents

Attachment “2” Budget Adjustment

Resolution No. 2020-09

Resolution No. 2020-09 - Exhibit “A” Public Services Agreement with W.I.C.R., Inc.

O =



Attachment "1"

State Contractor’s License No.: 745936

Visi bsite: WICR.net
w.llc.R., Inc. isit our website %388.94267

'ERPROOFING AND DECKING

PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES

Date: January 2, 2020 REV 6
Proposal Submitted to: City of Escondido (hereinafter “Customer™)

Mailing address: Same as Job Address Job Name: Escondido City Hall

Contact: c/o Nick Burke, The Garland Company | Job Address: 201 N. Broadway

City: Escondido Zip Code: 92025
County: SD X-Street: W. Valley Pkwy

Phone: 760-815-9333

Email: dbsbids@garlandind.com,

Type: Rehab/COM
Job Site Contact: TBD Ladder Needed: Y Size: 28 FT.
Existing Substrate: Concrete Job Number: TBD Color: TBD

*THIS IS A PREVAILING WAGE PROJECT*

Wanke, Industrial, Commercial, Residential, Inc., a California corporation, hereinafter “W.L.C.R., Inc..”, will
furnish all labor, equipment, materials, sales taxes, transportation, supervision, coordination, communication, and
storage to complete in a good and workmanlike manner the following described work:

WORK AREA:

All areas per job walk dated: 3/5/2019
1. One roof deck approx. 1,020 sf.

SITE CONDITIONS:

All personal belongings are to be removed from the work areas by others.

All of the decking components, unless otherwise noted in the scope of work below, are assumed to be of good, re-useable
quality and to remain as is. If repairs to the decking components are needed, they will be an additional cost.

Pricing is created upon visual inspection of deck condition and surrounding elements. WICR to perform inspection once
demo work has been completed. WICR will need to examine physical condition of the decks; existing waterproofing systems
and their components to address and correct any deficiencies that were not visually identified and present during the
inspection that may prevent WICR from properly installing a new waterproofing system per manufacturer specifications.

WICR requests jobsite parking and staging locations onsite, or as close by to the site to allow proper loading and unloading
of equipment, supplies and man power without additional burden costs to WICR. Additionally WICR requests a location
onsite for temporary storage of portable toilet and roll off dumpster bins along with access to onsite electricity and water. If
electricity cannot be provided, $40 per day will be charged for a generator on site.

This proposal is based upon WICR’s work hours from 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday through Friday. Should the owner
request alternative work hours, those hours will be based upon wage determinations for the periods requested (Over Time,
Double Time, Holiday time, etc.) and submitted to the owner in the form of a change order.

W.IL.C.R., Inc. Corporate Mailing Address: San Diego Office: Riverside Office:

901 East Tahquitz Canyon Way #A105 901 East Tahquitz Canyon Way 9424 Chesapeake Drive, Suite 1303 4752 Felspar Street, Bldg. C Unit 103
Palm Springs, CA 92262 #A105 San Diego, CA 92123 Riverside, CA 92509

Phone: (760) 327-8641 Palm Springs, CA 92262 Phone: (858) 277-1805 Phone: (951) 416-1055

Fax: (760) 327-8642 Phone: (760) 327-8641 Fax: (858) 277-1809

Fax: (760) 327-8642 1



Attachment "1"

NOTES:

1. Existing slope of the concrete substrate is to prevail, therefore slope or drainage of the deck is not a part of this
proposal. WICR is not responsible for lack of drainage, UBC standards, or ADA compliance. WICR will not
alter or change the existing slope of the underlying substrates which dictate the actual drainage of the deck
surface. If low spots exist, or if WICR discovers that sloping is needed after demo, it will be at additional cost.

2. Existing tile decks appear to be leaking around the drain locations. WICR will install retrofit drains, which fit
into the existing plumbing and drainage lines. Since the drain fits into existing drainage lines, any backups in the
drainage lines may cause leaks.

3. This proposal is based upon the reasonable assumption that the existing substrate is sound, stable, and suitable to
receive deck coatings. WICR assumes no more than one inch of thinset/mortar bed exists. If additional demo or
surface preparation is required, there will be added cost to the owners.

SCOPE OF WORK:

(A1.2) ONE ROOF DECK: (Approx. 1,020 sf.)
DEMO/PREPARATION
e Remove the existing tile down to concrete substrate. No guarantee against incidental damage to the substrate and
surrounding area as a result of removing existing tile and mortar
e Remove door threshold to atlow for door flashing installation. No guarantee door threshold can be removed
without damage to threshold. Threshold replacement, if needed, will be additional cost.
e Inspect the condition of the exposed substrate t0 determine if any additional repairs are needed to properly install
a manufacturer approved waterproofing system. If repairs are needed they will be an additional cost.
e Inspect existing slope in substrate to determine if any additional corrective sloping is needed. If corrective sloping
is needed it will be an additional cost.
e Prepare existing substrate to receive new coating. Grind surface to a CSP-2 profile
e Remove and dispose of trash and debris

STUCCO REMOVAL AND REPAIRS:

o  Chip out stucco 10”-16” as needed to allow for deck to wall flashing installation

e Stucco will be repaired upon completion of flashing and deck waterproof membrane installation. Install and
overlap paper and lathe, new weep screed, and three coat stucco system.

#**NOTE: Set weep screed 6 inches above finished deck surface**

o  All stucco repair textures and colors will be professionally applied and blended into the existing finishes,
however, due to the nature of spot repairs, WICR cannot guarantee an exact stucco match to the existing stucco
texture and color and a variance in finish should be expected.

METAL FLASHING:
e Deck to Wall Metal: Install new 24 gauge galvanized sheet metal, 4x10 deck to wall L metal overlapping all
joints and seams, fastened and sealed
e Door Flashing: Install 4x1/4” L-Metal door pan flashing, if possible, at door threshold areas and tie into existing
hollow metal door frames as best as possible.

o NOTE: No guarantee door elevation/reveals will allow for pan installation under threshold. In the case
that pan flashing cannot be installed under threshold, coatings will be terminated with sealant as best as
possible.

e Retrofit Drains: Install new, custom fabricated retrofit drains that install into existing drain body/drainage lines

WATERPROOFING: Garland Dura-Walk System

e Caulk and treat all seams per manufacturer spec
Fill and stripe coat at any cracks or joints per manufacturer spec
Detail Perimeter — Cove membrane up wall 107
Apply Dura-Walk primer per manufacturer specification
Apply Dura-Walk base coat at 32 wet mils in first application
Apply Dura-Walk Wear coat at 24 wet mils in second application
Broadcast aggregate throughout until refusal

2



Attachment "1"

Install Dura-Walk UV stable topcoat at approx. 100sf/gal

B

PROJECT TOTAL: $67,860

1.

(A2.0) ALTERNATES:

IE NEEDED SLOPING: After demo of tile and thinset, provide labor and material to fill low spots and add
sloping as needed using sand and urethane sloping underlayment. Pricing per square foot is for ¥ average
thickness. If substantial sloping is needed, site conditions will be evaluated and alternative pricing can be

provided.
ADD: $28/SF (3700 minimum)

LUNCH ROOM DECK: (Approx. 1,320 sf. Plus Stairs). Same scope as above. Includes through-wall scupper

flashing, deck to wall L-Metal flashing, door pans, stair flashing, and retrofit deck drains.
ADD: $86,318

NOTICE TO OWNER/ UNDERSIGNED:
ACKNOWLDEGEMENTS

IMPERFECTIONS:

Owner / undersigned acknowledges and agrees, the system being installed is a hand applied system, as such
imperfection in the finish coat, such as bird baths, ponds, texture differences, trowel marks, gouges and other
imperfections may appear. Owner acknowledges and agrees, W.1.C.R., Inc is not going to attempt to repair these
imperfections at will not be liable for any imperfections in the surface finish. WICR highly recommends proper
slope to all surfaces prior to WICR’s work. Owner acknowledges and agrees, if WICR’s proposal does not include
slope to drain or outsides edges (deck edge) of the substrates, WICR will not slope the deck and owner will be fully
responsible for all ponds or standing water on the deck and all staining or damage to the deck resulting from standing

water.

INTERIOR FINISHES AND REPAIRS:

Owner / undersigned acknowledges and agrees, incidental damage as a result of WICR’s scope of work may occur
to interior finishes. Owner further acknowledges and agrees, WICR will not be responsible for repairs to the interior
finishes of any surface or structure, that owner agrees to indemnify and hold harmless WICR form any and all
damage as a result of its work.

PERMITS, DESIGNS AND ENGINEERING:

WICR advises the owner to confirm if a building permit is required for any work identified within this proposal.
For confirmation, contact your local building and safety departments and local ordinances control departments. If
a permit is required, WICR will assist the owner in the permit process prior to the start of any work. The owner
agrees to pay for all costs associated to obtaining all required permits, including, engineering, design, permits,
application fees and all costs incurred by WICR in preparing for and attending inspections. WICR will not be
responsible for any building violations should the owner decide not to secure a permit. WICR, will provide all
services in conformance with local and state building requirements and comply with all applicable building codes.
Owner / undersigned to sign here, acknowledging their responsibility to confirm with local building departments if

permits for repairs are required.

SUBSTRATE MOVEMENT / EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION OF SURFACES:

Owner / undersigned, acknowledges and agrees, buildings move, expand and contract on a regular basis which can
lead to cracks and failures of coatings, such as deck surfaces, tile, stucco, doors, window other surfaces attached to
the building structure. Furthermore, WICRs proposed scope of work, do not include warranties against damage due
to structural movement of any substrates which WICR covers with its work. These surfaces include, but are not
limited to plywood, wood joists, nails and screws, metal flashings, frames, and cladding. Under no circumstances

3




Attachment "1"

will WICR be liable for damage as a result of any movement, expansion or contraction in the building structure.
As an example, where WICR install deck coatings, WICR only guarantees its work to conform to industry and
manufacturer specifications; however occasionally cracks will develop in the deck coating, generally exhibited in
straight lines reflecting plywood, wood joist or sheet metal movement. These cracks, if due to movement in the
building structure, are not in any way warranted by WICR at any time and not a result of WICR’s workmanship!
Owner / undersigned agrees to inform WICR of said cracks immediately upon the crack appearing but no later than
7 days after the appearance of a crack so that WICR has the opportunity but not the obligation, to assess the condition
and ensure repairs are made such that the coating remains watertight. F ailure to notify WICR of these cracks will
result in all warranties, express or implied being voided at WICR” s sole option.
DAMAGES TO EXISTING SURFACES AND ADJACENT OR ADJOINING SURFACES

e The owner / undersigned acknowledges and agrees that, in performing the work hereunder, WICR may be called
upon to drill through existing surfaces and, in doing so, might encounter, and cause damage to, existing rebar,
electrical connections, water supply lines, gas lines or other installations. In order to minimize, albeit not eliminate,
the occurrence of any such damage, the owner/undersigned may request that WICR scan the wall interior of targeted
areas prior to drilling. Scanning uses special radio frequencies to locate structures contained within the wall. This
service is provided only upon written request from the owner/undersigned received by WICR prior to drilling, and
at a separate, additional cost to the owner / undersigned if not specifically included in the proposal
above. Additionally, the owner / undersigned acknowledges and agrees that all utility services are to be turned off
by qualified contractors prior to the start of any drilling. The owner/ undersigned further acknowledges and agrees
that should any damage occur, it will be the sole responsibility of the owner/ undersigned to pay for and effectuate
any necessary repairs to effected areas. The owner / undersigned further acknowledges and agrees that WICR shall
not be held responsible for any damage to any of the exterior or interior of the walls, any damage to building
structure, or any damage to the supply, utility and drain lines, or any other installation within the wall interiors or
otherwise (“Damage”). The owner/undersigned hereby fully releases, remises, forever discharges and acquits
WICR and, to the fullest extent applicable, its officers, directors, owners, shareholders, investors, insurers, partners,
attorneys, employees, successors and assigns, representatives and other agents (collectively, the “Releasees”) from
and against any and all charges, complaints, claims, causes of action, debts, losses, demands, sums of money,
controversies, agreements, allegations, promises, damages and liabilities of any kind or nature whatsoever, whether
based in law or at equity, whether known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, anticipated or unanticipated,
including, but not limited to, all those which the owner/undersigned may have, own, hold or could assert against
the Releasees, including without limitation, any claims incidental to or arising out of such Damage. Additionally,
to the greatest extent permissible by law, the owner/undersigned hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold
harmless the Releases from and against any and all claims, causes of action, settlements, demands, costs, damages,
attorneys' fees, expenses and liabilities of any nature brought by any third party directly or indirectly arising from,
in connection with and/or relating in any manner to the Damage.

#* WICR generally requires at least 2 weeks to schedule work after we receive a fully executed contract by both parties.
In order to serve our customer’s needs, our crews work on several projects in various locations every day. Therefore,
the arrival of the crew must be approximate. Signing this document by itself does not constitute a contract. **

For additional information about this proposal, please contact:



-

Respectfully Submitted:

Mike Stratton

Estimating and Sales

W.I.C.R,, Inc,, Waterproofing & Decking

Office: 888-388-9427
Direct: 760-250-4124

Attachment "1"

W.LC.R., Inc. Waterproofing and Decking

W.ICR, Inc.

[ WATERPROOFING & DECKING

Visit our website: www.WICR.net



. ttachment "1"
EMPSD, Inc. - EmpireWorks “

9938 Prospect Ave, Suite 144

Santee, CA 92071 Em Ireworks
Phone: (888) 278-8200

Fax: (619) 241-8323 . E .
i Reconstruction and Painting

EmpireWorks Contractors

Li Number: 943059, 957037 . .
oense HmDer Easy To Do Business With

Reconstruction and Painting Contract

EPA Cert #: NAT-23000-1

Account Executive: Patrick Leverenz e 619-931-9086 e PatrickL@empireworks.com

Project Information Client Information
201 N Broadway Mike Daquila
Escondido, CA 92025 Email: mdaquila@escondido.org

Mobile: 760-839-4631

Contract Number:

Contract Date: 12/10/2019

Leverenz at PatrickL@empireworks.com.

Client related considerations:

1. Existing drain bodies are excluded from replacement during the coating installation.

EmpireWorks (contractor) proposes to furnish the material, equipment, manpower and supervision necessary to perform the
required rooftop plaza deck coating replacement. Performance guidelines set forth in the Garland Company (manufacturer)
were provided March 18th, 2019 were utilized in the creation of this proposal and will be used in the performance of the
project. The contractor will perform the summary scope of work items described on page 1 of the project specifications. All
manufacturer materials required by the specification are to be supplied by EmpireWorks. For all issues related to this bid,
project scheduling, technical application methods or in-progress updates please contact your Project Manager Patrick

2. Contractor will make reasonable adjustments for drainage and pitch corrections. Adjustment to rough framing or
installation of new concrete or cementicious coatings will be performed at an addition to the contract.

3. A minimum of (2) parking spaces must be provided as a project staging area. This staging area must be within 100 yards
of the work area.

4. Sensitive equipment at the interior of the building must be protected by the client prior to commencement of work.
Damage to interior property as a result of regular performance of scope are not the responsibility of the contractor.

Product list to be provided by EmpireWorks:

Mayoral Deck Break Room Deck
Primer- 5 GALLONS Dura-Walk Primer Primer- 8 GALLONS Dura-Walk Primer
Base- 20 GALLONS Dura-Walk base coat Base- 30 GALLONS Dura-Walk base coat

Intermediate- 10 GALLONS Dura-Walk base coat intermediate- 15 GALLONS Dura-Walk base coat
Top- 10 GALLONS Dura-Walk topcoat Top- 15 GALLONS Dura-Walk topcoat
Aggregate- 100 Lbs #30 mesh crystalline silica Aggregate- 100 Lbs #30 mesh crystalline silica
Caulking- (6) 200z sausages Tuff Stuff polyurethane Caulking- (9) 200z sausages Tuff Stuff polyurethane

Perform SECTION 07572 - POLYURETHANE ELASTOMERIC COATING SYSTEM FOR ROLLER APPLICATION
ON CONCRETE DECKS specification provided by Garland Co. Reference project City of Escondido — Plaza Deck.

State of California SDI 2019-1 rate included. Mayoral Deck $98,909.00 | x
Labor and sundry supplies only. Sundry: Stucco,
flashing, small tool, disposal/storage and hardware. Break Room Deck $121,609.00 | x

Notification is provided for bystanders and building employees via posted notices on doors and work area thoroughfares.
Materials will be supplied by Garland Products to be used are specified in the General Scope of Work.

Colors for project are to remain the same or similar to existing color scheme unless otherwise indicated in the General
Scope of work.

Approximate number of working days (weather permitting) is 32 day(s).

Color samplesup to ____ gallon(s) to be provided by manufacturer.

Our field staff will be uniformed in EmpireWorks safety vests and will wear all appropriate PPE at all times.

Deposit: 10% of the Project Value is due upon project acceptance. For projects less than $10,000.00, no deposit is required.

Excluded Items: Any item not included in the areas specified in the Removal and Replacement Description:

Exclusions: Internal decay and/or corrosion discovered after demolition will be assessed by EpmireWorks project management and submitted to

proper authority for review prior to commencement of work.

EmpireWorks Contractor License Number 943059, 957037

Rev. 6.15.2017

| Have Read and Understand This Page ___ INITIAL




Attachment "1"

PREPARATION PROCESS

ALL SURFACES TOBE  Mechanically high-pressure water wash surfaces specified for painting to remove dirt,
PAINTED dust, efflorescence, contaminants and peeling paint. Allow surfaces to dry completely
prior to application of patching materials or prime/finish coats. If water access is not
available (such as at perimeter fencing) the areas specified for painting will be hand
washed.

CRACK AND HOLE Fill hairline cracks with paint. Fill 1/16" — 1/4" cracks with a suitable caulking compound.
REPAIR FOR MASONRY Cracks larger than 1/4" are outside the scope of this Contract unless otherwise
AND STUCCO specified. Empire will patch holes up to 6 inches in diameter in stucco or plaster with a
stucco patching compound and will as reasonably possible blend in the compound with
existing texture. Holes larger than 6 inches are outside the scope of this Contract unless
otherwise specified. All concrete damage is outside the scope of this Contract unless

otherwise specified.

EXISTING WOOD Hand-scrape and wire-brush wood surfaces as needed to remove any loose or peeling
paint. Thoroughly de-gloss existing glossy surfaces to be recoated by sanding to
provide a clean, sound surface for application of the new paint coating system. Re-nail
loose trim boards to a tight fit where possible. Empire will prime raw wood areas with an
appropriate wood primer before application of the finish coat. If Empire is not performing
your wood replacement, it is the Client's duty to ensure that wood being replaced is
primed on all six sides.

METAL Remove rust, scale, loose and peeling paint, and other foreign matter by wire-brushing,
scraping and sanding as required. De-gloss previously enameled surfaces as necessary
by sanding prior to priming and painting. Sand all remaining paint to a feather edge.
Prime all raw metal areas with a rust-inhibitive primer before application of the finish
coat.

NEWLY INSTALLED Wood newly installed by Empire will be primed on ALL SIX SIDES prior to installation.

WOOD All adjacent unprimed existing joints or cut ends will be primed. Galvanized nails will be
used for exterior use only. Vertical joints where old fascia meets the replaced wood will
be caulked.

EXCLUSIONS

The following are excluded from this Contract unless specifically included in the Scope of Work: previously unpainted
areas, resident installed items, patio covers, trellises, curbing, parking space lines, roof jacks, vents, pipes, newly installed
stucco, wood or metal that was not on the building(s) at the time of the estimate unless installed by Empire. Caulking is
limited only to replacement of missing material, i.e. previously caulked areas in need of being re-caulked unless
specifically included in the Scope of Work. Areas that have never been caulked will not be caulked unless specifically
included in the Scope of Work.

EmpireWorks Contractor License Number 943059, 957037 1 Have Read and Understand This Page INITIAL

Rev. 6.15.2017 7



Attachment "1"

CONTRACT TERMS & CONDITIONS

1. COLORS: This Contract is to paint the surfaces listed under the Scope of Work with similar colors as those which
already exist on the surfaces to be painted. All color changes (e.g. a light color painted over a darker color or vice
versa) are subject to additional labor and materials charges unless the color changes are specifically set forth under
the Scope of Work. Accent colors made with DEEP “D” or NEUTRAL “N” bases, such as blue, red, green and yellow,
will take multiple coats for proper coverage. Therefore, if a deep or neutral based accent color is selected, additional
labor and material charges will apply unless specifically set forth under the Scope of Work. This Contract is for
repainting the same number of existing colors on the building(s) unless additional colors are specified in the Scope of
Work. If, after this Contract is accepted, additional colors are desired, a Change Order will be presented for the
Client's acceptance. All colors must be selected and approved by Client within a reasonable time after the Contract is

signed and prior to commencing project.

2. LANDSCAPING: Empire is not responsible for trimming or removal of trees and vegetation from or around surfaces to
be painted or repaired. If Empire is unable to paint the surface behind any vegetation due to the vegetation’s proximity
to the surface, Empire will paint around the area as best as possible.

3. SPRINKLERS and IRRIGATION EQUIPMENT: Irrigation equipment that may come into contact and/or provide
moisture to newly installed wood, stucco and/or metal surfaces must be shut down until the surfaces have been
properly coated and allowed proper time to cure without the presence of moisture. Empire will not warranty any
defects caused by moisture from irrigation equipment that was not shut down. Empire will provide Client or Client's
representative with reasonable notice when the irrigation equipment must be shut down.

4. ANTENNAS and SATELLITE DISHES: Should it become necessary for Empire to remove and/or install any
antennas, cooling or heating appliances or other equipment, Empire does not assume any responsibility for the
performance of said equipment, whether or not such performance problems are the result of the negligent acts or

omissions of Empire or its employees.

5. SITE ACCESS AND RIGHTS OF WAY: The Client will provide, no later than the date provided by Empire, access to
that portion of the property to which work is to be performed, and any other portions of the property designated herein
for use or work by Empire. Client will provide a suitable location for a storage container. Any delay in furnishing these
areas will cause a delay, and will entitle Empire to an adjustment in the Contract Price and time in which to complete

the Contract.

6. PERMITS, LICENSES, AND REGULATIONS: Permits and licenses necessary to complete the work agreed upon in
this Contract will be obtained by Empire and paid for by Client. Client agrees to assist Empire in obtaining such
permits and licenses. Client is responsible for all costs for drawings and structural calculations.

7. INSPECTION OF WORK: Client will provide a representative to visit and inspect the jobsite at regular intervals and
as requested by Empire to confirm that the Work is being performed in a manner consistent with the Contract.
Client's failure to send a representative to inspect the work will be deemed a waiver of this provision.

7.1.  FINAL WALK-THROUGH: Within 15 days of completion of the work, Client and Empire will schedule a final
walk-through. If Client fails to attend the final walk-though, then the work will be presumed compliant with the
terms of the Contract and final payment will immediately become due. Only touch-up work discussed during
the final walk-through will be required to be completed; all other work not discussed during the final walk-
through will be presumed satisfactory. Within 16 days of completion of the touch-up work, a new walk-through
will be scheduled by Client and Empire to review only those items which were required to be corrected under

this section.

8. CLEAN-UP: Upon completion of each workday, all materials, supplies, debris and rubbish created by Empire will be
reasonably removed; work spaces and storage areas will be left in a clean condition. Grounds will be left "broom

clean."

9. WORKMANSHIP & WARRANTY: All work will be performed in a manner consistent with manufacturer specifications
and building codes. Warranties become effective upon substantial completion according to the specific Scope of
Work on each building. This limited warranty is expressly conditioned on Empire having reasonable opportunity to
inspect the alleged defect, and Empire receiving full and final payment for all work under this Contract, and any
Change Orders signed thereafter.

EmpireWorks Contractor License Number 943059, 957037 | Have Read and Understand This Page INITIAL

Rev. 6.15.2017



9.1.

9.2

Attachment "1"

CONSTRUCTION & REPAIR WARRANTY:

Material Warranty Period
Labor 2 Year
Material 2 Year

Empire will guarantee workmanship and materials for the period stated above. Client must provide Empire with
written notice of all work it would like Empire to warranty within 30 days after discovery of a potential
warrantable issue. Empire will then evaluate the warranty claim, and all valid warranty claims will be corrected
within a reasonable timeline. In the event re-painting is required to resolve a warranty claim, Empire will
attempt to match the color of the re-painted area to the existing paint on the surrounding surfaces as best as
possible; however, Client agrees and understands that there may be color differences in the newly repaired
area and the surrounding surfaces and Client agrees not to hold Empire liable for any such color difference.

9.1.1.LIMITATIONS ON COVERAGE: Empire will not be liable for conditions outside of its control, including
but not limited to the following: a) failure due to physical abuse; b) failure due to acts of God; c) failure of
wood due to contact with water from irrigation systems; d) failure due to structural settling and/or
moisture-related problems, i.e. roofing leaks, broken water pipes or flooding; e) failure of the wood due
to the breakdown of any paint, stain and/or other material(s) applied to the wood; f) failure of the wood
due to client’s failure to properly treat the wood as necessary to protect the wood; g) vandalism; h)
tenant abuse; and i) termite damage.

9.1.2.CONSUMER PRODUCTS DISCLOSURE: Client acknowledges the opportunity, prior to the sale, to
examine all current written warranties pertaining to this Contract. It is understood and agreed that the
manufacturer's warranty shall be exclusive as to all items installed in or around the project which are
covered by separate manufacturers' or suppliers’ warranties, whether or not said items are consumer
products, and that Empire does not give any warranty, express or implied, as to the merchantability or
fitness of such items or as to their fitness for any purpose.

PAINT WARRANTY: Empire will provide a limited warranty to repair peeling, blistering and/or chipping paint
which are a result of defective workmanship. This limited warranty is for the period stated below:

Substrate Warranty Period
Stucco 2 Year
Wood 2 Year
Metal 2 Year

9.2.1.LIMITATIONS ON COVERAGE: This limited warranty expressly excludes the following items: a) failure
due to physical abuse; b) failure due to acts of God; c) failure occurring on any flat or horizontal surfaces
and/or any surface that allows moisture to collect; d) failure of any surface due to contact with irrigation
systems; e) failure due to structural settling, rotting wood, and/or moisture-related problems; f) fading
colors; g) efflorescence; h) failure on surfaces made of or containing galvanized metal; i) bleeding
caused by knots or rust; j) failure due to moisture content of substrate; and h) stucco repair below weep
screed. This limited warranty also expressly excludes any defect caused by failure of previous layers
and/or coatings of paint, which may or may not have been present or visible at the time of paint
application by Empire. While performing warranty work, Empire will make its best efforts to match the
color of paint, however, it cannot guarantee an exact match.

9.2.2.NO OTHER WARRANTIES: There are no other terms, conditions, covenants, representations, or
warranties, express or implied, out of common statutory law, with regard to quality, quantity, fitness,
habitability or otherwise with respect to this Contract other than those Empire warranties expressly set
forth in this section on Empire warranties.

10. MEDIATION: Before any legal remedy may be sought to resolve any controversy or claim which has arisen as a
direct or indirect result of this Contract, its performance, or the breach thereof, it is agreed that the Parties will submit
to a mediator jointly selected by the Parties. If the Parties are unable to agree to a mediator, then upon the written
request of either party, the mediator will be selected by and appointed by the administrator of the American Arbitration
Association. All costs for mediation will be borne equally by the Parties. This provision will not apply to any action

brought to enforce a mechanic’s lien or stop notice.
EmpireWorks Contractor License Number 843059, 857037 | Have Read and Understand This Page WITIAL

Rev. 6.15.2017



Attachment "1"

11. THREE-DAY RIGHT TO CANCEL: You, the buyer, have the right to cancel this contract within three (3) business
days. You may cancel by e-mailing, mailing, faxing, or delivering a written notice to the contractor at the contractor's
place of business by midnight of the third business day after you received a signed and dated copy of the contract that
includes this notice. Include your name, your address, and the date you received the signed copy of the contract and
this notice. If you cancel, the contractor must return to you anything you paid within ten (10) days of receiving the
notice of cancellation. For your part, you must make available to the contractor at your residence, in substantially as
good condition as you received it, any goods delivered to you under this contract or sale. Or, you may, if you wish,
comply with the contractor's instructions on how to return the goods at the contractor's expense and risk. If you do
make the goods available to the contractor and the contractor does not pick them up within 20 days of the date of your
notice of cancellation, you may keep them without any further obligation. If you fail to make the goods available to the
contractor, or if you agree to return the goods to the contractor and fail to do so, then you remain liable for
performance of all obligations under the contract. Contracts canceled after three (3) business days are subject to 10%
of the Contract Price as a cancellation fee.

12. COMMENCEMENT DATE. Due to variables such as seasonal labor capacity, wages and materials costs, the
Contract price will be subject to a three percent (3%) increase in price (unless otherwise noted) if work is not
commenced within 90 days of acceptance of the Contract.

13. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
13.1. Empire will not be held liable for failure of performance due to adverse weather, labor strikes, accidents, fire,

flood, explosion, or any other cause or delays beyond its reasonable control. Furthermore, Empire is not liable
for any delays caused by the Client.

13.2. Client will disclose any knowledge of the presence of hazardous material (as defined by law) known or
suspected on the premises. Should any previously undisclosed hazardous materials be disclosed or
discovered after this Contract is signed, Empire may, at its sole discretion, terminate this Contract and Client
agrees to pay for all labor and materials expended up to the date of cancellation lost overhead and profit, and
any the cost of any emergency measures taken by client.

13.3. In any dispute arising under this Contract (whether based in contract, tort, or both), Client and Empire agree
that each party will be responsible for its own attorneys' fees and costs. Moreover, the parties agree that
should Client bring any legal action against Empire for any cause(s) of action, the maximum damages award
available to Client is the amount paid by Client to Empire under this Contract.

13.4. The headings contained in this Contract are for the convenience of the parties only and shall not be used in the
interpretation of any provision hereof. If any provision of this Contract is deemed invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable, that provision will be severed and all other provisions will remain in full force and effect.

13.5. If accepted, this Contract constitutes the entire Contract between the parties, and supersedes all prior
proposals, contracts, or agreements, oral or written, between the parties relating to the subject matter of this
Contract.

13.6. Empire advises that there may be changes in the work that are reasonably necessary to accomplish the
provisions of this Contract. Empire will notify Client of such changes prior to commencement of such work in
the form of a written Change Order. Extra work and Change Orders become part of the contract once the
order is prepared in writing and signed by the parties.

13.7. Empire reserves the right to withdraw this Contract at any time prior to Client's acceptance without any liability.

13.8. Empire is not responsible for any special, consequential and/or indirect damages or loss of use resulting from
its performance even if Empire or its agents have been advised of the possibility of such damages or if a
remedy set forth herein is found to have failed its essential purpose.

13.9. This offer to enter into a contract is valid for 30 days from the contract date; after which all prices are subject to
change.

13.10. Client hereby releases and agrees to defend and hold harmless Empire, its directors, owners, officers, agents
and employees from any liability resulting from or due to the insufficient strength of the existing structure of
Client's residence/building to bear weight, and from the results of any subsequent structural fault, except to the
extent that such structural fault is solely caused by or is solely attributable to Empire’s gross negligence.

13.11. Empire represents and warrants that it has in place $1,000,000 of General Liability insurance that will remain
in effect through the completion of the project. Empire further agrees to list the Client and the Property
Management Company as an additional insured on the General Liability Policy. Empire shall provide Client
with proof of its insurance and proof of the additional insured endorsement required hereunder prior to the
commencement of the work.

EmpireWorks Contractor License Number 943059, 957037 | Have Read and Understand This Page INITIAL
10

Rev. 6.15.2017



Attachment "1"

MECHANICS’ LIEN WARNING (CALIFORNIA):

Anyone who helps improve your property, but who is not paid, may record what is called a mechanics lien on your
property. A mechanics lien is a claim, like a mortgage or home equity loan, made against your property and recorded with
the county recorder.

Even if you pay your contractor in full, unpaid subcontractors, suppliers, and laborers who helped to improve your property
may record mechanics liens and sue you in court to foreclose the lien. If a court finds the lien is valid, you could be forced
to pay twice or have a court officer sell your home to pay the lien. Liens can also affect your credit.

To preserve their right to record a lien, each subcontractor and material supplier must provide you with a document called
a ‘Preliminary Notice.’ This notice is not a lien. The purpose of the notice is to let you know that the person who sends you

the notice has the right to record a lien on your property if he or she is not paid.

BE CAREFUL. The Preliminary Notice can be sent up to 20 days after the subcontractor starts work or the supplier
provides material. This can be a big problem if you pay your contractor before you have received the Preliminary Notices.

You will not get Preliminary Notices from your prime contractor or from laborers who work on your project. The law
assumes that you already know they are improving your property.

PROTECT YOURSELF FROM LIENS. You can protect yourself from liens by getting a list from your contractor of all the
subcontractors and material suppliers that work on your project. Find out from your contractor when these subcontractors
started work and when these suppliers delivered goods or materials. Then wait 20 days, paying attention to the
Preliminary Notices you receive.

PAY WITH JOINT CHECKS. One way to protect yourself is to pay with a joint check. When your contractor tells you it is
time to pay for the work of a subcontractor or supplier who has provided you with a Preliminary Notice, write a joint check
payable to both the contractor and the subcontractor or material supplier.

For other ways to prevent liens, visit CSLB’s Internet Web site at www.cslb.ca.gov or call CSLB at 800-321-CSLB (2752).
REMEMBER, IF YOU DO NOTHING, YOU RISK HAVING A LIEN PLACED ON YOUR HOME. This can mean that you
may have to pay twice, or face the forced sale of your home to pay what you owe.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE CONTRACTORS STATE LICENSE BOARD (CSLB)

CSLB is the state consumer protection agency that licenses and regulates construction contractors. Contact CSLB for
information about the licensed contractor you are considering, including information about disclosable complaints,
disciplinary actions, and civil judgments that are reported to CSLB. Use only licensed contractors. If you file a complaint
against a licensed contractor within the legal deadline (usually four years), CSLB has authority to investigate the
complaint. If you use an unlicensed contractor, CSLB may not be able to help you resolve your complaint. Your only
remedy may be in civil court, and you may be liable for damages arising out of any injuries to the unlicensed contractor or
the unlicensed contractor's employees.

For more information:
Visit CSLB's Internet Web site at www.cslb.ca.gov
Call CSLB at 800-321-CSLB (2752)

Write CSLB at P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento, CA 85826.

EmpireWorks Contractor License Number 943059, 957037 | Have Read and Understand This Page INITIAL

Rev. 6.15.2017 11



Attachment "1"

PAYMENT TERMS

1. As a deposit, 10% of the Project Value is due upon project acceptance. For projects less than $10,000.00, no deposit
is required.

2. Invoices will be submitted for the percentage of the contract completed.

3. Billing Contact Information:

Bill to: clo:
Attention: . Invoices will be submitted
Address E-mail: .

) _ via fax and U.S. Postal
City Phone #: regular mail
State Zip Code Fax: '

4. Client will be invoiced on the 15t and 15" of every month. Payment terms are net 30 days.
5. Past due amounts will be subject to a 1% per month finance charge.
6. All payments and notices shall be mailed to: EmpireWorks 1682 Langley Ave, Irvine, CA 92614,

EmpireWorks will furnish all labor materials and equipment necessary to fully execute this $
contract for the base price of .

Base Price
To include an Additional Option listed under the “Additional Options” please initial below. | §
The cost as outlined for the additional work will be added to the Base Price.
Initial Additional Options
Final Contract Price for all services to be performed by EmpireWorks S

Total Contract Price

As a deposit, 10% of the Project Value is due upon project acceptance. For projects less
than $10,000.00, no deposit is required. S

Deposit

[

ANY INVOICE NOT PAID WITHIN 30 DAYS WILL ACCRUE INTEREST AT THE RATE OF 1% PER MONTH

Acceptance of Contract: The terms, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are accepted. EmpireWorks is
authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above.

Accepted By: (SIGNATURE) (DATE)
(PRINT

(TITLE)
NAME)

Accepted By: (SIGNATURE) (DATE)
(PRINT

(TITLE)
NAME)

(SIGNATURE) (TITLE)
Empire Works (PRINT

(DATE)
NAME)

EmpireWorks Contractor License Number 943059, 957037 | Have Read and Understand This Page INITIAL

Rev. 6.15.2017 12




Attachment "2"

ESCONDIDO

CITY OF ESCONDIDO

Cityof ChoIcE NS BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUEST
Date of Request: 1/3/2020 For Finance Use Only
Department. Public Works/Building Maintenance Log #
Division: Fiscal Year

; ] Budget Balances
Project/Budget Manager: .:\joasr(ralzh Goulart léi:el%ns_'on — Gergtal Fund Accls

Revenue
Council Date (if applicable): 1/15/2020 Interfund Transfers
(attach copy of staff report) Fund Balance

Project/Account Description Account Number Amount of Increase | Amount of Decrease
Deposits for PEG Fees 2141-001-000 65,000

PEG Fees 4039-001-000 65,000

RPTTF Residual Payment 4025-001-000 120,000

Transfers Out 5999-001-000 185,000

Transfers In » 4999-650-000 185,000

Roo'1c Repairs 5131-650-450 185,000

Explanation of Request:

Increase to the Building Maintenance operating budget to cover costs to replace the roof deck above the Mitchell
Room and the Escondido Credit Union. Funding for these repairs will be covered by PEG fees and additional RPTTF
funds.

APPROVALS
@//Q/n{/éna
Date City Manager Date
[ ¢[2e
" Dafe City Clerk Date
Distribution (after approval): Original: Finance

FM\105 (Rev.11/06)



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA,
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY
CLERK, TO EXECUTE, ON BEHALF OF THE
CITY, A PUBLIC SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH WANKE, INDUSTRIAL, COMMERCIAL,
RESIDENTIAL, INC. FOR THE ROOF DECK
REPLACEMENT OF THE MITCHELL ROOM
AND THE ESCONDIDO CREDIT UNION AND
APPROVE A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) properties located at 201 North
Broadway, the Mitchell Room and the Escondido Credit Union, both have significant

roof leaks; and

WHEREAS, a notice of inviting bids for the replacement of the roof decks above
the Mitchell Room and the Escondido Credit Union Roof Deck Replacement Project

(“Project”) was duly published on October 10, 2019; and
WHEREAS. the sealed bids for the Project were received and evaluated on
December 10, 2019; and

WHEREAS, Wanke, Industrial, Commercial, Residential, Inc. ("WICR”), was

determined to be the lowest most responsive and responsive bidder; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be the best

public interest to award this contract to WICR in the amount of $154,178.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.



2. That the Mayor and the City Clerk are authorized to execute, on behalf of
the City, a Public Services Agreement with WICR in a substantially similar form to that
which is attached and incorporated to this Resolution as Exhibit “A”, and subject to final

approval as to form by the City Attorney.

3. That the City Council approves of any necessary budget adjustments to

expend funds received for the purposes stated herein.

4. That the Director of Public Works is authorized to approve change orders

up to 20 percent (20%) of the contract bid price.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 1 of 59

TN

S 1D
(EyofChoiceNg,.O
CiTY OF ESCONDIDO
PUBLIC SERVICES AGREEMENT
This Agreement is made this day of 20
Between: CITY OF ESCONDIDO
a Municipal Corporation
201 N. Broadway
Escondido, California 92025
Attn: Michael D’Aquila
760-839-4895
("CITY")
And: W.IL.C.R., INC.

9424 Chesapeake Drive, Suite 1303
San Diego CA 92123

Attn: Mike Stratton

760-250-4124

("CONTRACTOR")

WHEREAS, the CITY and CONTRACTOR desire to enter into this Agreement for the performance
of services;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:

1. Description of Services. CONTRACTOR will furnish all of the services described in "Attachment A,"
which is attached and incorporated by this reference. CONTRACTOR agrees to diligently perform
such services to their completion, with professional quality and technical accuracy.

2. Compensation. The CITY will pay and CONTRACTOR will accept in full payment for the above work,
for an amount not to exceed $154,178.00 (“Contract Price”). Any breach of this Agreement will
relieve CITY from the obligation to pay CONTRACTOR, if CONTRACTOR has not corrected the
breach after CITY provides notice and a reasonable time to correct it. If this Agreement is
amended at any time, additional compensation of CONTRACTOR contained in subsequent
amendment(s) shall not exceed a cumulative total of ten percent (10%) of the maximum payment
provided for in this Section 2.

3. Term and Time of Performance. CONTRACTOR must start working within one (1) week from City's
notice to begin. CONTRACTOR must diligently perform and complete the work by
March 31, 2020. Extension of terms or time of performance may be made only upon the City's written
consent.

4. Scope of Compensation. CONTRACTOR will be responsible for performance of the tasks specified
in the Description of Services in “Attachment A.” No compensation will be provided for any other
tasks without specific prior written consent from the CITY.




6.

Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 2 of 59

Performance. CONTRACTOR must faithfully perform in a proficient manner, to the satisfaction of the
CITY, all the work or services described in the Description of Services, above.

City Property. All original documents, drawings, electronic media, and other material prepared by
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement immediately becomes the exclusive property of the CITY, and
may not be used by CONTRACTOR for any other purpose without prior written consent of the CITY.

Insurance Requirements.

a.

C.

The CONTRACTOR shall secure and maintain at its own cost, for all operations, the following
insurance coverage, unless reduced by the City Attorney:

(1) General liability insurance. Occurrence basis with minimum limits of $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 General Aggregate, and $1,000,000 Products/Completed
Operations Aggregate; and

(2) Automobile liability insurance of $1,000,000 combined single-limit per accident for bodily
injury and property damage, unless waived as provided in 7(b) below; and

(3) Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance as required by the California
Labor Code, as amended, or certificate of sole proprietorship; and

It is the parties’ understanding that the use of a motor vehicle is not a primary subject of this
Agreement. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that operating a motor vehicle is outside the
scope of this Agreement and occurs only at the convenience of CONTRACTOR. A waiver
of automobile liability insurance is only effective if both sets of initials appear below, otherwise
such insurance is required.

Acknowledged by CONTRACTOR

Waiver appropriate by CITY

Each insurance policy required above must be acceptable to the City Attorney.

(1) Each policy must provide for written notice within no more than thirty (30) days if
cancellation or termination of the policy occurs. Insurance coverage must be provided
by an A.M. Best's A- rated, class V carrier or better, admitted in California, or if non-
admitted, a company that is not on the Department of Insurance list of unacceptable
carriers.

(2) All non-admitted carriers will be required to provide a service of suit endorsement in
addition to the additional insured endorsement.

(3) Both the General Liability and the Automobile Liability policies must name the CITY
specifically as an additional insured under the policy on a separate endorsement page.
The endorsement must be ISO Form CG2010 11/85 edition or its equivalent for General
Liability endorsements and CA 20-01 for Automobile Liability endorsements.

(4) The General Liability policy must include coverage for bodily injury and property damage
arising from CONTRACTOR’s work, including its on-going operations and products-
completed operations hazard.

(5) The General Liability policy must be primary and noncontributory and any insurance
maintained by CITY is excess.

In executing this Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees to have completed insurance
documents on file with the CITY within fourteen (14) days after the date of execution. Failure



8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 3 of 59

to comply with insurance requirements under this Agreement will be a material breach of this
Agreement, resulting in immediate termination at CITY’s option.

Indemnification. CONTRACTOR (which in this paragraph 8 includes its agents, employees and
subcontractors, if any) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY from all claims,
lawsuits, damages, judgments, loss, liability, or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, for any of the
following:

a. Any claim of liability arising out of the negligence or any acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR in
the performance of this Agreement;

b. Any personal injuries, property damage or death that CONTRACTOR may sustain while using
CITY-controlled property or equipment, while participating in any activity sponsored by the
CITY, or from any dangerous condition of property; or

c. Any injury or death which results or increases by any action taken to medically treat
CONTRACTOR.

Stormwater Indemnification. = CONTRACTOR shall further indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
CITY and its officers, employees, and agents from and against any and all liabilities, claims, actions,
causes of action, proceedings, suits, administrative proceeds, damages, fines, penalties,
judgments, orders, liens, levies, costs and expenses of whatever nature, including reasonable
attorney’s fees and disbursements, arising out of any violation, or claim of violation of the San Diego
Municipal Storm Water Permit (Order No. R9-2013-0001), as amended or renewed, of the California
Regional Water Quality Control Board Region 9, San Diego, which CITY might suffer, incur, or
become subject by reason of or occurring as a result of or allegedly caused by the construction of
the Project or the Improvements.

Anti-Assignment Clause. Since the CITY has relied on the particular skills of CONTRACTOR in
entering this Agreement, CONTRACTOR may not assign, delegate, or sublet any duty or right under
this Agreement, or any portion of the Description of Services. Any such purported assignment,
delegation, or subletting will void this entire Agreement, unless the CITY has previously approved
such action in writing. Unless CONTRACTOR assigns this entire Agreement, including all rights and
duties herein, to a third party with the CITY’S written consent, CONTRACTOR shall be the sole payee
under this Agreement. Any and all payments made pursuant to the terms of this Agreement are
otherwise not assignable.

Costs and Attorney's Fees. In the event that legal action is required to enforce the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees and
costs.

Independent Contractor. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and no agency or employment
relationship is created by the execution of this Agreement.

Merger Clause. This Agreement and its Attachments, if any, are the entire understanding of the
parties, and there are no other terms or conditions, written or oral, controlling this matter. In the event
of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any of its Attachments, the provisions
of this Agreement must prevail.

Anti-Waiver Clause. None of the provisions in this Agreement will be waived by CITY because of
previous failure to insist upon strict performance, nor will any provision be waived because any other
provision has been waived by CITY, in whole or in part.




14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 4 of 59

Severability. The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement will not void or affect
the validity of any other provisions of this Agreement.

Choice of Law. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of California. Venue for all
actions arising from this Agreement must be exclusively in the state or federal courts located in San
Diego County, California.

Multiple Copies of Agreement/Counterparts. Multiple copies and/or counterparts of this Agreement
may be executed, including duplication by photocopy or by computerized scanning device. Each
duplicate will be deemed an original with the same effect as if all the signatures were on the same
instrument. However, the parties agree that the Agreement on file in the office of the Escondido City
Clerk is the copy of the Agreement that shall take precedence should any differences exist among
copies or counterparts of the document.

Provisions Cumulative. The foregoing provisions are cumulative and in addition to and not in
limitation of any other rights or remedies available to the CITY.

Notices to Parties. Any statements, communications or notices to be provided pursuant to this
Agreement must be sent to the attention of the persons indicated below. Each party agrees to
promptly send notice of any changes of this information to the other party.

Business License. The CONTRACTOR is required to obtain a City of Escondido Business License
prior to execution of this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws, Permits and Licenses. CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed
of and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances,
regulations, and rules in effect during the term of this Agreement. This shall include, but not limited
to, all California Labor Code laws regarding payment of prevailing wages and all OSHA regulations.
CONTRACTOR shall obtain any and all licenses, permits, and authorizations necessary to perform
the services set forth in this Agreement. Neither CITY, nor any elected nor appointed boards, officers,
officials, employees, or agents of CITY, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of
CONTRACTOR to comply with this section.

Prevailing Wages. If applicable, pursuant to Section 1770 et seq. of the Labor Code, CONTRACTOR
agrees that a prevailing rate and scale of wages, in accordance with applicable State and Federal
Law, will be paid in the carrying out of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed of
and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations,
and rules pertaining to the payment of prevailing wages. The prevailing rate and scale to be paid
shall be the same as the ‘General Prevailing Wage Rates’ approved by the Department of Industrial
Relations as of the date of the execution of this Agreement. Said rates and scales are herein referred
to and adopted in this Agreement as though fully and completely set forth herein, and said scale as
adopted by the Department is made a part of this Agreement by reference. Copies of the prevailing
rate of per diem wages are available on the Intranet at (http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR). Neither CITY,
nor any elected nor appointed boards, officers, officials, employees, or agents of CITY, shall be liable,
at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of CONTRACTOR to comply with this section.

Department of Industrial Relations Compliance. This project is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. CONTRACTOR shall post any job site notices
required by regulation. CONTRACTOR, as well as any subcontractors, shall be registered pursuant
to Cal. Lab. Code § 1725.5 to be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, (subject to the
requirements of Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code) or engage in the performance of any
public work contract that is subject to the requirements of Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the California




Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 5 of 59

Labor Code. Neither CITY, nor any elected nor appointed boards, officers, officials, employees, or
agents of CITY, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of CONTRACTOR to
comply with this section.

23. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed of and
comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. CONTRACTOR affirms that as a
licensed Contractor and employer in the State of California, all new employees must produce proof
of eligibility to work in the United States within the first three days of employment and that only
employees legally eligible to work in the United States will be employed on this public project.
CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with such provisions before commencing and continuously
throughout the performance of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties below are authorized to act on behalf of their organizations,
and have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth below.

CITY OF ESCONDIDO

Date:
Paul McNamara
Mayor
CITY OF ESCONDIDO
Date:
Zachary Beck
City Clerk
W.I.C.R., INC.
Date:

(Contractor signature)

Title

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
MICHAEL R. MCGUINNESS, City Attorney

By:

THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST QUALIFIED PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 6 of 59

Attachment A

1. SCOPE OF WORK

A. General

W.L.C.R., Inc. (“Contractor”’) agrees and shall provide work to repair the 2nd floor
decking/roof coating near the Mayor’s office. All work performed under this Agreement
shall include the furnishing of all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to perform
this Agreement.

Products specified are Garland/DBS (or equal). Their product specifications are to be
adhered to for the installation and are found in subsection D (below). NOTE:
Garland/DBS is what the specifications for this bid is based on. For substitutions:

See SUBSTITUTION OF MATERIALS in NOTICE INVITING
SEALED BIDS- SECTION A-00100 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS-Item #5.

The installation must meet all applicable local, City of Escondido codes.The Contractor
shall be a licensed contractor pursuant to the Business and Profession Code and shall
be licensed in the following appropriate classification of Contractor’s license, for the
work bid upon, and must maintain the license throughout the duration of the Contract:
Class B ( General Building) and either a C-33 (Painting and Decorating) or a C-39
(Roofing). Additinally, the Contractor must be a Garland/DBS, Inc.-approved
installer/applicator for the selected product.

B. Work Location

City Hall, 201 N. Broadway, Escondido CA 92025.

C. Prevailing Wages

Prevailing wages are required along with DIR registration.

D. Task

1. Demo perimeter interior stucco walls to install new 22ga metal flashing (weep
screed) to be a minimum of 8” in height from the deck.

2. Repair stucco above the newly install metal flashing.
3. Prep new vertical flashing height to bond with new waterproofing system.
4. Once dirt and debris are removed, shot blast or etch concrete to CSP 2 profile.

5. Repair any cracks, splits, or low areas (1/4” Deviation) in the concrete using
leveling emulsion. Caulk expansion joints with Tuff Stuff polyurethane caulking.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment A Page 7 of 59

6. All 90-degree vertical to horizontal transitions to be caulked with polyurethane
prior to the installation of the Dura-Walk system.

7. Apply 2-part Dura-Walk Primer at rate of 0.5 gallons per 100 sq ft. Use only as
much as possible in two-hour period and allow to dry.

8. Apply thin layer of Dura-Walk base coat over cracks.
9. Place 4” joint tape over all joints.

10. Apply Dura-Walk base coat at rate of 2.0 gallons per 100 sq. ft. over entire
area. Allow 16 hours minimum to cure.

11. Apply Dura-Walk wear coat at rate of 1.5 gallons per 100 sq. ft. over entire
area. Allow at least 16 hours to dry, but no more than 72 hours. While wear
coat is still wet apply aggregate at rate or 8 pounds per square of #30 mesh
crystalline silica. Remove excess aggregate, spade to remove/knock down
imperfections and vacuum/air blow excess aggregate.

12. Apply Dura-Walk topcoat over entire area at rate of 1.0 gallon per 100 sq ft.
Allow 24 hours before light foot traffic and 48 for heavy use. (TOP COAT MUST
BE APPLIED WHILE CONCRETE DECK TEMPERATURE IS FALLING, NOT
RISING).

13. Contractor to provide 2-year workmanship warranty.

14. Garland to provide 10-year manufacturer material warranty.

2. PERFORMANCE OF WORK

A. Hours of Operation
Normal business hours, Monday — Friday 7:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.

Hours and scheduling may be arranged with proper notification and prior approval of
the City of Escondido representative.

B. Communication

The contact for the City of Escondido is Mike D’Aquila and can be reached by phone
(760-802-0400) and/or email mdaquila@escondido.org, or Danny Sadek (760-802-
0396; dsadek@escondido.org).



Attachment A

C. Work Completion

The contractor

must complete all

March 31, 2020.

3. TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE
One Hundred Fifty-Four Thousand One Hundred Seventy-Eight Dollars.

work described

Resolution No. 2020-09

Exhibit "A"
Page 8 of 59

in this agreement by

$154,178.00.
BID SCHEDULE
Item | Approx.
No. | Quantity Item With Unit Price Written in Words Unit Price Amount
1. 1L.S. | Demo & repair stucco $6,786.00 | $6,786.00
.............................................. Per Lump Sum
2. 1L.S. | Prep, clean, repair and caulk cracks, splits, etc. | $27,144.00 | $27,144.00
............................................... Per Lump Sum
3. | 1LS. | Apply Dura-Walk Primer & Dura-Walk base $16,965.00 | $16,965.00
.............................................. Per Lump Sum
4. 1L.S. | Apply Dura-Walk wear coat & topcoat $13,572.00 | $13,572.00
.............................................. Per Lump Sum
5. 1L.S. | Replace roof drains $3,393.00 | $3,393.00
.................................... Per Lump Sum
6. 1L.S. | Credit Union Deck: Demo & repair stucco .. $8,632.00 | $8,632.00

......................................... Additive Bid Item

.............................................. Per Lump Sum




Resolution No. 2020-09

Attachment A Exhibit "A"
Page 9 of 59
Item | Approx.
No. | Quantity Item With Unit Price Written in Words Unit Price Amount
7. 1L.S. | Credit Union Deck: Prep, clean, repair and caulk | $34,527.00 | $34,527.00
cracks, splits, etc. ........... Additive Bid Item
.............................................. Per Lump Sum
8. 1L.S. | Credit Union Deck: Apply Dura-Walk Primer & | $17,264.00 | $17,264.00
Dura-Walk base .............. Additive Bid Item
.............................................. Per Lump Sum
9. 1L.S. | Credit Union Deck: Apply Dura-Walk wear coat | $12,947.00 | $12,947.00
& topcoat .........cceeevrennnn Additive Bid Item
............................................... Per Lump Sum
10. | 1L.S. | Credit Union Deck: Replace roof drains....... $4,316.00 | $4,316.00
......................................... Additive Bid Item
............................................... Per Lump Sum
11. | 1L.S. | Credit Union Deck: Remove tiles and re-seal $8,632.00 | $8,632.00
steps with Dura-Walk .....Additive Bid Item
............................................... Per Lump Sum
4. PAYMENT

The total contract price is $154,178.00. Payment will be made after the services have
been performed and within 30 days of receipt of invoice for those sevices.

CITY shall retain 5% (five percent) of the estimated value of work performed per invoice
as security for fulfillment of the contract by the contractor.

A final walk through of the Project will be made to determine completion of the
Agreement. Minor corrective items shall be identified in the final walk through of the
Project. The contractor will have twenty (20) days to complete minor corrective items.

If the contractor fails to complete the minor corrective items prior to the expiration of the
twenty (20) day period immediately following the walk-through, the City shall withhold
from the final payment an amount equal to twice the estimated cost, as determined by
the City, of each item until such time as the item is completed. At the end of such twenty



Attachment A Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 10 of 59

(20) day period, if there are items remaining to be corrected, the City may elect to
proceed as provided in the Attachment C.

. OTHER PROVISIONS

CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE
GENERAL

The Contract Price constitutes the total compensation payable to the CONTRACTOR for
performing the work. All duties, responsibilities, and obligations whether implied, inferred
or express, assigned to or undertaken by the CONTRACTOR to complete the work shall
be at its expense without change in the Contract Price.

The Contract Price may only be changed by a City of Escondido-approved Change Order.
The value of any work covered by a Change Order or of any claim for an increase or
decrease in the Contract Price shall be determined in one of the following three ways:

1. UNIT PRICES.
2. AGREED UPON LUMP SUM.
3. COST OF WORK.

These three methods are discussed in detail in, Article 11, which has been attached and
incorporated by reference. (Attachment B)

AGREED ENTITLEMENT. When the City is in agreement regarding entitlement due the
CONTRACTOR on a particular issue that the CONTRACTOR has brought to the attention
of the City with a notice, and finds that there is a clear entitlement for additional
compensation, the CONTRACTOR and the City will choose a method to be used for
calculating the value of the extra work from the three methods described in Article
11.1.B.1, 2, or 3 of the General Provisions.

For “CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS, WAIVER, AND RELEASE FORMS, DISPUTES, FALSE
CLAIMS ACT.” See Atrticle 16, which has been attached and incorporated by reference.
(Attachment E)

. ADDITIONAL ATTACHMENTS

All work shall be in accordance with the documents included in the City’s Notice Invited
Sealed Bids and bid documents as submitted by the Contractor, including but not limited
to: Attachment B: Article 11 — Change of Contract Price; Attachment C: Article 13 —
Inspections and Tests, Correction, Removal, or Acceptance of Defective Work;
Attachment D: Article 14 — Payments to Contractor, Retention and Completion;
Attachment E: Article 16 — Construction Claims, Waiver and Release Forms, Disputes,



Resolution No. 2020-09
Attachment A Exhibit "A"

Page 11 of 59

False Claims Act; Attachment F: Article 17 — Miscellaneous Bid Documents, Exhibits 1-
5, which are incorporated herein by reference.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment B Page 12 of 59

ARTICLE 11 — CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE

11.1

A

GENERAL

The Contract Price constitutes the total compensation payable to the CONTRACTOR for
performing the work. All duties, responsibilities, and obligations whether implied, inferred
or express, assigned to or undertaken by the CONTRACTOR to complete the work shall
be at its expense without change in the Contract Price.

A. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order. The value of any
work covered by a Change Order or of any claim for an increase or decrease in the
Contract Price shall be determined in one of the following three ways:

1. UNIT PRICES. Where the work involved is covered by unit prices contained
in the Contract Documents, by application of unit prices to the quantities of
the items involved;

2. AGREED UPON LUMP SUM. By mutual acceptance of a lump sum, which
may include an allowance for overhead and profit not necessarily in
accordance with Article 11.4; or

3. COST OF WORK. On the basis of the cost of the work, force account
payment (determined as provided in Article 11.2) plus the CONTRACTOR's
overhead and profit (determined as provided in Article 11.3).

B. AGREED ENTITLEMENT. When the City is in agreement regarding entitlement due
the CONTRACTOR on a particular issue that the CONTRACTOR has brought to
the attention of the City with a notice, and finds that there is a clear entitlement for
additional compensation, the CONTRACTOR and the City will choose a method to
be used for calculating the value of the extra work from the three methods
described in Article 11.1.B.1, 2, or 3 above.

1. CHANGE USING UNIT PRICES METHOD. When a change in Contract
Price using unit prices is applied, described in Article 11.1.B.1 (UNIT
PRICES), a Field Order, signed by the City, will be given to the
CONTRACTOR. The increase in line item quantities shall be tracked and
documented in the daily extra work report (Article 11.4) which must identify
the quantities used/consumed/handled and shall be presented to the City's
on-site representative on a daily basis for review, for pertinent comments,
and counter-signature. The CONTRACTOR will invoice the City for the line
item quantity used for the extra work following the conditions of Article 14,
"PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR, RETENTION AND COMPLETION". A
reconciliation Contract Change Order will be executed when the final
quantities used are known. The Contract Change Order will account for the
over or under amount of line item quantities.

2. CHANGE USING AGREED UPON LUMP SUM METHOD. When the
payment method described in Article 11.1.B.2 (LUMP SUM) is used, a Field
Order or a Contract Change Order, signed by the City, will be given to the
CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR will invoice the City for the extra work
following the conditions of Article 14. (Attachment D)



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment B Page 13 of 59

3. CHANGE USING FORCE ACCOUNT "COST OF WORK" METHOD. When
no agreement can be reached on the method of payment for the extra work,
the method described in Article 11.1.B.3 (COST OF WORK), force account
payment (determined as provided in Article 11.2) shall be used. A Field
Order will be given to the CONTRACTOR, signed by the City, describing the
work. The City reserves the right to place a "not to exceed" amount on the
Field Order based on a City cost estimate. If the approximate value of the
cost of extra work approaches the "not to exceed" value, the
CONTRACTOR shall notify the City in order that a further decision may be
made as to how to proceed. When the extra work is completed a Contract
Change Order for the accumulated total value of the extra work shall be
executed, should the value of the work exceed the Field Order allowance.
The extra work shall be documented in the Daily Extra Work Report (Article
11.4).

C. DISAGREEMENT REGARDING ENTITLEMENT. When there is no agreement
between the CONTRACTOR and the City on an issue of work that has not yet been
started that the CONTRACTOR has brought to the City pursuant to Article 11.5
"CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NOTICE", and the City does not find that there
is any entitlement for additional compensation due the CONTRACTOR, the work in
question may be designated "DISPUTED WORK?". During the performance of any
such "DISPUTED WORK" the CONTRACTOR shall:

1. Although not to be construed as proceeding under agreed-upon extra work
provisions, the CONTRACTOR shall keep and furnish records breaking
down the work as described in the following Article 11.2. Daily records shall
be furnished according to Article 11.4.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall continue with the disputed work according to
Article 2.6.

11.2 COST OF WORK - FORCE ACCOUNT (BASED ON TIME AND MATERIALS)

D. GENERAL: The term "cost of work" means the sum of all costs necessarily incurred
and paid by the CONTRACTOR for labor, materials, and equipment in the proper
performance of extra work. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by the
City, such costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of
the Project, shall include only the following items and shall include the costs
itemized in Article 11.3.D.1. to be compensated for as a part of the stipulated
overhead and profit allowance.

E. LABOR: The costs of labor will be the actual cost for wages prevailing for each craft
or type of workers performing the extra work at the time the extra work is done, plus
employer payments of payroll taxes, workers compensation insurance, liability
insurance, health and welfare, pension, vacation, apprenticeship funds, and other
direct costs resulting from federal, state or local laws, as well as assessments or
benefits required by lawful collective bargaining agreements. Labor costs for
equipment operators and helpers will be paid only when such costs are not included
in the invoice for equipment rental. The labor costs for foremen shall be
proportioned to all of their assigned work and only that applicable to extra work
shall be paid. Non-direct labor costs including superintendence shall be considered



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment B Page 14 of 59

part of the markup set out in Article 11.3. Payment for the cost of labor and
subsistence or travel allowance will be made at the rates paid by the
CONTRACTOR to other workers operating similar equipment already on the Site,
or in the absence of such labor, established by collective bargaining agreements for
the type of workmen and location of the extra work, whether or not the operator is
actually covered by such an agreement.

F. MATERIALS: The cost of materials reported shall be at invoice or lowest current
price at which materials are locally available and delivered to the Site in the
quantities involved, plus the cost of freight, delivery and storage, subject to the
following:

1. All trade discounts and rebates shall accrue to the City, and the
CONTRACTOR shall make provisions so that they may be obtained;

2. For materials secured by other than a direct purchase and direct billing to
the purchaser, the cost shall be deemed to be the price paid to the actual
supplier as determined by the City. Except for actual costs incurred in the
handling of such materials, markup will not be allowed;

3. Payment for materials from sources owned wholly or in part by the
purchaser shall not exceed the price paid by the purchaser for similar
materials from said sources on extra work items or the current wholesale
price for such materials delivered to the Site, whichever price is lower; and

4. If in the opinion of the City the cost of material is excessive, or the
CONTRACTOR does not furnish satisfactory evidence of the cost of such
material, then the cost shall be deemed to be the lowest current wholesale
price for the quantity concerned delivered to the Site less trade discount.
The City reserves the right to furnish materials for the extra work and no
claim will be allowed by the CONTRACTOR for costs and profit on such
materials.

G. EQUIPMENT: The CONTRACTOR will be paid for the use of equipment at the
rental rate listed for such equipment specified in the current edition of the "Labor
Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates" published by the State of California
Business, Transportation & Housing Agency (CALTRANS). Such rental rate will be
used to compute payments for equipment whether the equipment is under the
CONTRACTOR's control through direct ownership, leasing, renting, or another
method of acquisition. The rental rate to be applied for use of each item of
equipment will be the rate resulting in the least total cost to the City for the total
period of use. If it is deemed necessary by the CONTRACTOR to use equipment
not listed in the publication specified, an equitable rental rate for the equipment will
be established by the City. The CONTRACTOR may furnish cost data which might
assist the City in the establishment of the rental rate. Payment for equipment shall
be subject to the following:

1. All equipment shall, in the opinion of the City, be in good working condition
and suitable for the purpose for which the equipment is to be used;



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment B Page 15 of 59

2. Before construction equipment is used on the extra work, the
CONTRACTOR shall plainly stencil or stamp an identifying number thereon
at a conspicuous location, and shall furnish to the City a description of the
equipment with its identifying number;

3. Unless otherwise specified, manufacturer's ratings and manufacturer
approved modifications shall be used to classify equipment for the
determination of applicable rental rates. Equipment which has no direct
power unit shall be powered by a unit of at least the minimum rating
recommended by the manufacturer;

4. Individual pieces of equipment or tools having a replacement value of $250
or less, whether or not consumed by use, will be considered to be small
tools and no payment will be made therefore.

H. EQUIPMENT RENTAL TIME: The rental time to be paid for equipment on the Site
will be the time the equipment is in productive operation on the extra work being
performed and, in addition, will include the time required to move the equipment to
the location of the extra work and return it to the original location or to another
location requiring no more time than that required to return it to its original location;
except, that moving time will not be paid if the equipment is used on other than the
extra work, even though located at the Site of the extra work. Loading and
transporting costs will be allowed, in lieu of moving time, when the equipment is
moved by means other than its own power, except that no payment will be made for
loading and transporting costs when the equipment is used at the Site of the extra
work on other than the extra work. Rental time will not be allowed while equipment
is inoperative due to breakdowns. The rental time of equipment on the work site will
be computed subject to the following:

1. When hourly rates are listed, any part of an hour less than thirty (30)
minutes of operation will be considered to be half-hour (1/2 — hour) of
operation, and any part of an hour in excess of 30 minutes will be
considered 1 hour of operation;

2. When daily rates are listed, any part of a day less than 4 hours operation will
be considered to be 1/2 — day of operation. When owner-operated
equipment is used to perform extra work to be paid for on a time and
materials basis, the CONTRACTOR will be paid for the equipment and
operator, as set forth in this Article.

3. Payment for the equipment will be made in accordance with the provisions
in Article 11.

I. SURETIES: All work performed hereunder shall be subject to all of the provisions of
the Contract Documents and the CONTRACTOR's sureties shall be bound with
reference thereto as under the original Agreement. Copies of all amendments to
Bonds or supplemental Bonds shall be submitted to the City for review prior to the
performance of any work hereunder.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment B Page 16 of 59

11.3 OVERHEAD & PROFIT (O&P) PERCENTAGE SCHEDULE. The allowance for
overhead and profit must not exceed the values in the Overhead & Profit Schedule table
below.

J.

For Change Orders, whether additive or deductive and work classified as Extra
Work, the allowance for overhead and profit must include full compensation for
superintendence, insurance premiums, bond premiums, taxes, field office expense,
extended overhead, home office overhead, and any other items of expense e.g.,
Change Order estimating and preparation cost, claims preparation cost, schedule
analysis, project management, and field engineering.

Extended overhead must be any and all costs incurred either in the field or at your
office resulting from Extra Work excluding direct costs related to direct hourly labor,
equipment, or materials necessary to complete the Extra Work.

Overhead & Profit Schedule table

O & P Schedule

Component Overhead Profit
Labor 10% 10%
Material 10% 5%
Equipment 10% 5%
Subcontractor Extra Work 3.5% 1.5%

. Work paid under Allowance Bid items for permits, governmental fees, or direct

payments specified in the Contract Documents will not be subject to any markups.

. When all or any part of the Extra Work is performed by a Subcontractor, the

allowance specified herein will be applied to the labor, materials, and equipment
costs of the Subcontractor, to which you may add 5% of the Subcontractor's total
cost for the Extra Work.

. Regardless of the number of hierarchical tiers of Subcontractors, the 5% which is

your allowance 3.5% (for overhead) and 1.5% (for profit) may be applied one time
only to the performing Subcontractor’s total cost.

You will only be reimbursed, with 6% markup, for the warranty extensions beyond
the time required by the Contract Documents if requested by the City.

The O&P Schedule shall be used for "Negotiated Sum" (described in Article
11.1.B.2) and/or "Time and Materials" (described in Article 11.1.B.3) work. Unit
Price Work shall not have the overhead and profit markup applied to the work, on
the basis that the Unit Price includes overhead and profit margins.

CONTRACTOR shall set up separate cost codes for each extra work item and
account for all labor, materials and equipment for each cost code. This includes
using said cost codes for all labor expended on extra work, and coding delivery
tickets and P.O.'s as well. The same cost code shall appear on the daily report to
account for labor, materials and equipment devoted/used that day for each extra
work item. Failure to comply with this requirement shall be a waiver of the right to
collect the same.



11.4

Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"

Attachment B Page 17 of 59

S. IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE VALUE OF SUCH EXTRA WORK
OR CHANGES, AS DETERMINED BY ANY OF THE AFOREMENTIONED
METHODS, EXPRESSLY INCLUDES ANY AND ALL OF CONTRACTOR'S
COSTS AND EXPENSES, BOTH DIRECT AND INDIRECT, RESULTING FROM
EFFORTS TO IDENTIFY, QUOTE AND/OR NEGOTIATE THE CHANGE(S) AS
WELL AS ADDITIONAL TIME REQUIRED ON THE PROJECT, OR RESULTING
FROM DELAYS TO THE PROJECT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
ACCELERATION, CUMULATIVE AFFECT OF THE CHANGE(S), EXPEDITING
THE WORK, FRAGNETS, ETC.

T. NO RESERVATION OF RIGHTS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WILL BE PERMITTED
OR ALLOWED.

CONTRACTOR'S DAILY EXTRA WORK REPORT

U. General. At the close of each working day, the CONTRACTOR shall submit a daily
report to the Inspector, on forms approved by the City, together with applicable
delivery tickets, listing all labor, materials, and equipment involved for that day, and
for other services and expenditures when authorized concerning extra work items.
An attempt shall be made to reconcile the report daily, and the Inspector and the
CONTRACTOR shall sign it. The report shall clearly differentiate between extra or
disputed work and contract work. In the event of disagreement, pertinent notes shall
be entered by each party to explain points that cannot be resolved immediately.
Each party shall retain a signed copy of the report. Reports by Subcontractors or
others shall be submitted through the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall
organize and forward copies of the CONTRACTOR's and Inspector's reports to the
City upon the completion of each "Time and Material" activity.

V. CONTRACTOR shall maintain its records in such a manner as to provide a clear
distinction between the direct costs of any extra work and/or deductive work and the
original contract work. This requirement pertains to the costs for wholly or partially
approved Change Order Requests (COR's), Construction Change Directives
(CCD's), Change Orders (CQO's), Field Orders (FO's), and work CONTRACTOR
considers to be potential Change Orders.

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NOTICE. If the CONTRACTOR should claim that any
instruction, request, drawing, specification, action, condition, omission, default, or other
situation obligates the City to pay additional compensation to CONTRACTOR or to grant
an extension of time, or constitutes a waiver of any provision in the Agreement, the
CONTRACTOR shall provide written "Notice" to the City within 5 days after sustaining
of such damage, or being notified of an adverse decision, and provide within 14 days of
the event the factual basis supporting the claim (unless otherwise specified). For
requests for additional compensation for alleged changed conditions, such as finding
rock, notice shall be made before the condition instigating the notice is disturbed. The
written "Notice" shall state the summary points for which the factual bases will support
the claim and cite in detail the Project Documents (including plans and specifications)
upon which the claim is to be based. CONTRACTOR's failure to notify the City within
such a period shall be deemed a waiver and relinquishment of such a claim. If such
notice is given within the specified time, the procedure for its consideration shall be as
stated above in these General Conditions. In addition, on or before the end of the month
for which the claim has been filed, the CONTRACTOR shall also file with the City the



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 18 of 59
Attachment B

WAIVER AND RELEASE FORMS, for which the claim and the amount of the claim is
identified. If the claim is not indicated on the WAIVER AND RELEASE FORMS,
CONTRACTOR's claim shall be forfeited and invalidated and it shall not be entitled to
consideration for time or payment on account of any such claim.

COSTS RELATING TO WEATHER/ FORCE MAJEURE. The CONTRACTOR shall have
no claims against the City for damages for any injury to work, materials, or equipment,
resulting from the action of the elements whether caused by weather, earthquakes, or
other natural events. If, however, in the opinion of the City, the CONTRACTOR has
made all reasonable efforts to protect the materials, equipment, and work, the
CONTRACTOR may be granted a reasonable extension of Contract Times to make
proper repairs, renewals, and replacements of the work, materials, or equipment. All
costs incurred as a result of any force majeure, including abnormally or unusually severe
weather, earthquakes or other natural perils shall not be compensable from the City and
the risks associated therewith shall be exclusively borne by CONTRACTOR. To the
extent CONTRACTOR elects to protect itself from any/all of said risks, it shall insure
against the same.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment C Page 19 of 59

ARTICLE 13 — INSPECTIONS AND TESTS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL, OR ACCEPTANCE
OF DEFECTIVE WORK

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

AUTHORITY OF INSPECTOR. Any work performed by the CONTRACTOR upon the
instructions or comments by the Inspector may be confirmed by the CONTRACTOR,
at the CONTRACTOR's option, in writing by the City. Any extra work performed without
the written instruction of the City shall be at CONTRACTOR's sole cost and expense
and there will be no delay damages incurred by City for such work.

INSPECTION. No work shall be carried on except with the knowledge of the
Inspector(s). The Inspector shall have free access to any or all parts of work at any time.
CONTRACTOR shall furnish Inspector reasonable opportunities for obtaining such
information as may be necessary to keep Inspector fully informed respecting progress
and manner of work and character of materials. Inspection of work shall not relieve
CONTRACTOR from any obligation to fulfill the Project Documents. Inspector shall have
authority to stop work whenever provisions of Project Documents are not being complied
with and such noncompliance is discovered. CONTRACTOR shall instruct its employees
accordingly.

NOTICE OF DEFECTIVE WORK. Prompt notice of defective work known to the City will
be given to the CONTRACTOR. Defective work discovered or uncovered will be noticed
to the CONTRACTOR as soon as practicable. All defective work, whether or not in
place, may be rejected, corrected, or accepted as provided in this Article 13. Defective
work may be rejected even if approved by prior inspection.

ACCESS TO WORK. The City, Engineer, their consultants, subconsultants, other
representatives and personnel of the City, independent testing laboratories, and
governmental agencies with jurisdictional interests shall have access to the work at
reasonable times for their observation, inspecting, and testing. CONTRACTOR shall
provide them proper and safe conditions for such access, including sheeting and shoring
as may be necessary, and advise them of CONTRACTOR's Site safety procedures, and
programs so that they may comply therewith as applicable.

INSPECTIONS AND TESTS

A. The CONTRACTOR shall give the City not less than 2 working days notice of
readiness of the work for all required general inspections, tests, or approvals, and
shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required
inspections or tests. Specialty inspections shall be scheduled 7 days in advance.

B. The City shall employ and pay for the services of an independent testing
laboratory to perform all inspections, tests, or approvals required by the Contract
Documents except:

1. Forinspection, tests, or approvals covered by Articles 13.5.C. and 13.5.D.
below;

2. That costs incurred in connection with tests or inspections conducted
pursuant to Article 13.5.G. shall be paid for by the CONTRACTOR.

C. If Laws and Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any work (or
any part thereof) to be inspected, tested, or approved by an employee or other



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment C Page 20 of 59

representative of such public body, CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility
for arranging and obtaining such inspections, tests or approvals; pay all costs in
connection therewith; and furnish the City the required certificates of inspection or
approval.

. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for arranging and obtaining and shall pay
all costs in connection with any inspections, tests, or approvals required for the City's
acceptance of materials or equipment to be incorporated in the work or acceptance of
materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for approval prior to the
CONTRACTOR's purchase thereof for incorporation in the work. Such inspections,
tests, or approvals shall be performed by organizations acceptable to the City.

. The City will make, or have made, such inspections and tests as the City deems
necessary to see that the work is being accomplished in accordance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents. Unless otherwise specified in the
Supplementary General Conditions, the cost of such inspection and testing will be
borne by the City. In the event such inspections or tests reveal non-compliance with
the requirements of the Contract Documents, the CONTRACTOR shall bear the cost
of corrective measures deemed necessary by the City, as well as the cost of
subsequent reinspection and retesting. Neither observations by the Engineer nor
inspections, tests, or approvals by others shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from the
CONTRACTOR's obligation to perform the work in accordance with the Contract
Documents.

If any work that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered without written
concurrence of the City, it must, if requested by the City, be uncovered for
observation. Such uncovering shall be at the CONTRACTOR's expense.

. If any work is covered contrary to the written request of the City, it must, if requested
by the City, be uncovered for the City's observation and recovered at the
CONTRACTOR's expense.

. If the City considers it necessary or advisable that covered work be observed by the
City or inspected or tested by others, the CONTRACTOR, at the City's request, shall
uncover, expose, or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing
as the City may require, that portion of the work in question, furnishing all necessary
labor, material, and equipment. If it is found that such work is defective work, the
CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct, indirect, and consequential costs and damages
of such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, and testing and of satisfactory
reconstruction, including but not limited to, fees and charges of engineers, architects,
attorneys, and other professionals. However, if such work is not found to be defective
work, the CONTRACTOR will be allowed an increase in the Contract Price, directly
attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, and
reconstruction; and, if the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent
thereof, the CONTRACTOR may make a request for additional compensation
therefore as provided in Articles 10, 11 and 12.

All initial tests shall be performed under the direction of the City. All re-testing
due to failure shall be performed under the direction of the City, and the cost of all re-
testing shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR. The costs and potential loss of
productivity to accommodate re-testing shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR.



13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

Resolution No. 2020-09

Attachment C Exhibit "A"
Page 21 of 59

J. A City Inspector, or designee, may be required on the job site at all times work
is in progress as determined by the City. Inspection will be required by the
appropriate agency for the following type of work: trenching, special or sand
bedding, laying pipe, any welding, backfill, compaction and pavement replacement.
Special work hours required by the Contract are considered normal hours.

THE CITY MAY STOP THE WORK. If defective work is identified, the City may order
the CONTRACTOR to stop performance of the work, or any portion thereof, until the
cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of the City to stop the work
shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the City to exercise this right for the benefit of
the CONTRACTOR or any other party.

CORRECTION OR REMOVAL OF DEFECTIVE WORK. If required by the City, the
CONTRACTOR shall promptly either correct all defective work, whether or not fabricated,
installed, or completed, or, if the work has been rejected by the Engineer, remove it from
the Site and replace it with non-defective work. The CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct,
indirect, and consequential costs and damages of such correction or removal, including
but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other
professionals made necessary thereby.

ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and
replacement of defective work, the City prefers to accept the defective work, the City may
do so. The CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct, indirect, and consequential costs
attributable to the City's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective work. If
any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, a Change Order will be issued
incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the
work, and the City shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price.

THE CITY MAY CORRECT DEFECTIVE WORK

A. If the CONTRACTOR fails within a reasonable time after written notice from the City
to correct defective work, or to remove and replace defective work as required by
the City in accordance with Article 13.7, or if the CONTRACTOR fails to perform the
work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if the CONTRACTOR fails to
comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, the City may, after 7
days written notice to the CONTRACTOR, correct and remedy any such deficiency.

B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this paragraph, the City shall
proceed with corrective and remedial action. In connection with such corrective and
remedial action, the City may exclude the CONTRACTOR from all or part of the Site,
take possession of all or part of the work, and suspend the CONTRACTOR's
services related thereto and incorporate in the work all materials and equipment for
which the City has paid the CONTRACTOR whether stored at the Site or
elsewhere. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the City, City's representatives,
Engineer, and Engineer's consultants access to the Site to enable the City to
exercise the rights and remedies under this Article.

C. All direct, indirect, and consequential costs and damages incurred by the City in
exercising the rights and remedies under this paragraph will be charged against the
CONTRACTOR and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary
revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the work; and the City shall be



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment C Page 22 of 59

entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the parties are unable to
agree as to the amount of the adjustment, the City may make a claim therefore as
provided in Article 11. Such claim will include, but not be limited to, all costs of
repair or replacement of work of others, destroyed or damaged by correction,
removal, or replacement of CONTRACTOR's defective work and all direct, indirect,
and consequential damages associated therewith.

The CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed an extension of Contract Times (or
Milestones) because of any delay in the performance of the work attributable to the
exercise by the City of the City's rights and remedies under this paragraph.

13.10 CORRECTION PERIOD

A

B.

The correction period for defective work shall be the longer of:
1. One year after the date of final acceptance;
2. Such time as may be prescribed by Laws and Regulations;

3. Such time as specified by the terms of any applicable special guarantee
required by the Contract Documents; or

4. Such time as specified by any specific provision of the Contract Documents.

If, during the correction period as defined in Article 13.10A above, any work is found to
be defective work, the City shall have the same remedies as set forth in Articles 13.7,
13.8, and 13.9 above.

Where defective work (and damage to other work resulting therefrom) has been
corrected, removed, or replaced under this paragraph, the correction period hereunder
with respect to such work will be extended for an additional period of 1 year after such
correction or removal and replacement has been satisfactorily completed.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 23 of 59
Attachment D

ARTICLE 14 — PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR, RETENTION AND COMPLETION
APPLICATION FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT

14.1

D.

On the 25th of each month, the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the City for review,
the Application for Payment filled out and signed by the CONTRACTOR covering
the work completed as of the date of the Application for Payment and accompanied
by the appropriate waiver(s) and release upon "Progress Payment" and such
supporting documentation as is required by the Project Documents.

The Application for Payment shall identify, as a subtotal, the estimated amount of
the CONTRACTOR total earnings to date; plus the value of materials stored at the
Site, pursuant to Article 14.1.K, which have not yet been incorporated in the work;
and less a deductive adjustment for materials installed which were not previously
incorporated in the work, but for which payment was allowed under the provisions
for payment for materials stored at the Site, but not yet incorporated in the work.

The net payment due the CONTRACTOR shall be the above-mentioned subtotal
from which shall be deducted five percent (5%) retention and the total amount of all
previous payments made to the CONTRACTOR. The City shall have the right to
issue joint checks to CONTRACTOR and SUBCONTRACTOR and/or Suppliers.

Work completed as estimated shall be an estimate only and no inaccuracy or error
in said estimate shall operate to release CONTRACTOR or Surety from any
damages arising from such work or from enforcing each and every provision of this
Agreement, and the City shall have the right subsequently to correct any error
made in any estimate for payment.

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT BE ENTITLED TO HAVE ANY PAYMENT
ESTIMATES PROCESSED OR BE ENTITLED TO HAVE ANY PAYMENT FOR
WORK PERFORMED SO LONG AS ANY LAWFUL OR PROPER DIRECTION
CONCERNING WORK, OR ANY PORTION THEREOF, GIVEN BY THE CITY OR
ENGINEER SHALL REMAIN UNCOMPLIED WITH BY THE CONTRACTOR.

The City has discretion to require from the CONTRACTOR any of the following
information with the application for payment:

1. Certified payroll covering the period of the prior application for payment;

2. Unconditional waivers and releases from all Subcontractors/suppliers for
which payment was requested under the prior application(s) for payment;

3. Receipts or bills of sale for any items.

4. Signature of the Inspector, confirming that the maintenance of the Record
Drawings is being kept up-to-date, and that the Record Drawings are not
being used as a construction set.

NO PAYMENT BY THE CITY HEREUNDER SHALL BE INTERPRETED TO IMPLY
THAT THE CITY HAS INSPECTED, APPROVED, OR ACCEPTED ANY PART OF
THE WORK. The final payment of 5% of the value of the work done under this
Agreement, if unencumbered, shall be made within 55 days after the City records



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 24 of 59
Attachment D

the Notice of Completion. ACCEPTANCE WILL BE MADE ONLY BY ACTION OF
THE ESCONDIDO CITY COUNCIL.

. Payments for Change Order items can be included into the monthly progress
payments, only after the Change Order has been fully executed and approved by
the CITY and the CONTRACTOR, and only to the extent that Change Order Work
has been performed.

The value of materials stored at the site shall be an amount based upon the value
of all acceptable materials and equipment not incorporated in the work but delivered
and suitably stored at the site or at another location agreed to in writing; provided,
each such individual item has a value of more than $5,000 and will become a
permanent part of the work. The Application for Payment shall also be
accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice, or other documentation warranting that the
CONTRACTOR has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all
Liens and evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate
property insurance and other arrangements to protect the City's interest therein, all
of which will be satisfactory to the City.

. Unless otherwise provided, on or before making request for final payment of the
undisputed amount due under the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the
City, in writing a summary of all claims for compensation under or arising out of this
Agreement which were timely submitted. The acceptance by CONTRACTOR of the
payment of the final amount shall constitute a waiver of all claims against the City
under or arising out of this Agreement, except those previously made, in a timely
manner and in writing, and identified by CONTRACTOR as unsettled at the time of
CONTRACTOR's final request for payment.

. Materials included in the progress payments shall be stored properly and protected
as required to prevent damage, including but not limited to, rust, dents, scratches,
and decay. Materials stored on-site and subject to payment, shall be gated and
secured to prevent theft and/or vandalism. When the CONTRACTOR requests
payment for materials not incorporated in the work, the following terms and
conditions shall apply:

1. For permanent materials delivered to the project site, or stored in an
approved location off-site, an allowance of one-hundred percent (100%) of
the material costs plus freight charges as invoiced may be made. The
allowance will be base upon validated invoices or bills for such materials,
including freight charges, and a copy thereof shall be made a part of the
documented records for the project. All permanent materials approved for
payment will have been tested by the City for compliance with the
requirements of the Project Documents. Payment will only be made for
permanent materials that conform to the requirements of the Project
Documents.

2. No allowance shall be made for fuels, form lumber, falsework, temporary
structures or other materials of any kind that will not become an integral part
of the finished contraction.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment D Page 25 of 59

3. All permanent materials, for which an allowance is requested, shall be
stored in an approved manner where damage is not likely to occur. If any of
the stored materials are lost or become damaged in any manner,
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for repairing or replacement of such
damaged materials. The value of the lost or damaged materials shall be
deducted from the CONTRACTOR's subsequent progress payments until
replacement has been accomplished.

4. Permanent materials, for which payment has been made, either wholly or
partially, shall not be removed from the approved location until such time
that it is incorporated into the work, unless approved by the City and/or the
Engineer.

5. The following must accompany the written request for payment of stored
materials:

i. Consent of the Surety specifying the material type and the bid
items in which the material is to be used.

ii. Validating invoices showing that payment for the material has been
made.

ii. A written statement from CONTRACTOR attesting that the invoices,
as submitted do not include charges and/or fees for placing,
handling, erecting or any other charges and/or markups other than
the actual material cost, sales tax if applicable, and freight charges.

iv.  Bill of lading showing delivery of the material.

v. Inspection test reports, and certifications if required by the Contract
Documents.

Vi. CONTRACTOR shall obtain a negotiable warehouse receipt,
endorsed over to the City for materials and/or equipment stored in an
off-site warehouse.

vii.  Certificate of insurance clearly indicating that the materials or
equipment is fully insured against theft, fire, vandalism, malicious
mischief, as well as other coverage required under the Project
Documents.

6. Nothing in these General Conditions shall be interpreted as requiring the
City to pay for stored materials. The City shall decide on a case-by-case
basis whether stored materials can be paid for. Some factors the City will
consider are: CONTRACTOR's ability to meet the Project Schedule and
milestones, the effectiveness of CONTRACTOR's quality control plan, how
record drawings are being maintained and kept up, the status of the
material submittals, and the on-going cleanliness of the Project and the
Project Site. No payment will be made for stored materials that have not
been submitted and accepted.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"

Attachment D Page 26 of 59

7. If the permanent materials are stored off-site, CONTRACTOR must pay the
City's representative's transportation and lodging to see the permanent
materials.

8. Full title to the materials and/or equipment shall vest with the City at the time
of delivery to the site, warehouse or other storage location.

14.2 UNIT PRICE BID SCHEDULE. Progress payments on account of unit price work will be
based on the number of units completed as determined by the City and/or its
representative.

14.3 SCHEDULE OF VALUES (LUMP SUM PRICE BREAKDOWN)
A. CONTRACTOR shall furnish on a form approved by the City:

1. Within 10 days of award of the contract and commensurate with the
specification section entitted CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES, provide a
detailed preliminary estimate giving a complete breakdown of contract price
for each area of the project and/or site, which shall include all
Subcontractor/supplier agreements showing the dollar amounts of these
agreements to justify the schedule of values, and showing separate line
items for the material cost(s) and installation cost(s).

2. A periodical itemized estimate of work done for purpose of making partial
payments thereon, that is until the cost loaded CPM construction schedule
has been developed (if required by the Contract).

3. Within 10 days of a request by City, a schedule of estimated monthly
payments which shall be due CONTRACTOR under the Agreement.

B. Values employed in making up any of these schedules are subject to the City's
written approval and will be used only for determining the basis of partial payments
and will not be considered as fixing a basis for additions to or deductions from
contract price.

1. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, payment for CONTRACTOR's
mobilization costs shall be cost loaded as follows:

Mobilization Payment Schedule
Upon Mobilization 50% of Mobilization item may be billed for
bonding, insurance and yard set-up costs
25% 10% of Mobilization item may be billed
50% 10% of Mobilization item may be billed
75% 10% of Mobilization item may be billed
100% (clean up completed) 20% remaining to pay for de mobilization

14.4 ALLOWANCES
A. The following costs shall be included in all allowances;

1. Cost of the product to CONTRACTOR or Subcontractor, less applicable
trade discounts.



2.

3.

Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment D Page 27 of 59

Delivery to the site.

Applicable taxes.

B. CONTRACTOR costs included in the Contract Sum include, but are not limited to;

1.

6.

7.

Arrangement of product(s) shipping and handling at site, including
unloading, uncrating, and storage.

Protection of products from the elements and from damage.
Labor for installation, adjustments and finishing products.
Product warranties.

Scheduling changes and updates.

Other expenses required to complete installation.

CONTRACTOR and Subcontractor(s) overhead and profit.

C. The adjustments in costs will be made if the net cost is more or less than the
specified amount of the allowance. The net cost of the adjustment shall be the
amount of the difference between the specified allowance and the actual cost of
the material, with the exception of a not-to-exceed fifteen percent (15%) mark-up
for overhead and profit. The Contract Sum will be adjusted by Change Order.

1.

Submit any claims for anticipated additional costs, or other expenses
caused by the selection of the allowance, prior to execution of the work.

Submit documentation for actual additional costs, or other expenses caused
by the selection the allowance, prior to execution of the work.

Failure to submit claims within the designated time will constitute a waiver of
claims for additional costs.

D. City may separately bid the materials, subject to the specified allowances. The
successful bidder will be assigned to CONTRACTOR, and shall be considered a
Subcontractor to the CONTRACTOR. Upon assignment, the CONTRACTOR shall
all make the necessary submittals, prepare necessary shop drawings and
coordinate all related work. CONTRACTOR shall make all necessary adjustments
and revisions to the Project Schedule for such allowances and Subcontractor
assignments.

14.5 WAIVER, CONDITIONAL RELEASE, RELEASE OF CLAIMS

A. Commensurate with the statutes of Public Contract Code section 7100 et seq.,
provisions in public works contracts with public entities which provide that
acceptance of a payment otherwise due a CONTRACTOR is a waiver of all claims
against the public entity arising out of the work performed under the contract or
which condition the right to payment upon submission of a release by the
CONTRACTOR of all claims against the public entity arising out of performance



Resolution No. 2020-09
Attachment D Exhibit "A"
Page 28 of 59

of the public work are against public policy and null and void. This section shall
not prohibit a public entity from placing in a public works contract and enforcing a
contract provision which provides that payment of undisputed contract amounts is
contingent upon the CONTRACTOR furnishing the public entity with a release of
all claims against the public entity arising by virtue of the public works contract
related to those amounts. The CONTRACTOR from the operation of the release
may specifically exclude disputed contract claims in stated amounts.

. Neither the City nor original CONTRACTOR by any term of their contract, or
otherwise, shall waive, affect, or impair the claims and liens of other persons
whether with or without notice except by their written consent, and any term of the
contract to that effect shall be null and void. Any written consent given by any
claimant pursuant to this subdivision shall be null, void, and unenforceable unless
and until the claimant executes and delivers a waiver and release. Such a
waiver and release shall be binding and effective to release the City,
construction lender, and surety on a payment bond from claims and liens only if
the waiver and release follows substantially one of the forms set forth in this
section and is signed by the claimant or his or her authorized agent, and, in the
case of a conditional release, there is evidence of payment to the claimant.
Evidence of payment may be by the claimant's endorsement on a single or joint
payee check that has been paid by the bank upon which it was drawn or by
written acknowledgment of payment given by the claimant.

. No oral or written statement purporting to waive, release, impair or otherwise
adversely affect a claim is enforceable or creates any estoppel or impairment of a
claim unless:

1. ltis pursuant to a waiver and release prescribed herein, or
2. The claimant had actually received payment in full for the claim.

. This section does not affect the enforceability of either an accord and
satisfaction regarding a bona fide dispute or any agreement made in
settlement of an action pending in any court provided the accord and
satisfaction or agreement and settlement make specific reference to the, stop
notice, or bond claims.

. The waiver and release given by any claimant hereunder shall be null, void,
and unenforceable unless it follows substantially the following forms in the
following circumstances. Each waiver in this provision shall contain the
following language, in at least as large a type as the largest type otherwise
on the document:



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment D Page 29 of 59

1. Where the claimant is required to execute a waiver and release in
exchange for, or in order to induce the payment of, a progress payment and
the claimant is not, in fact, paid in exchange for the waiver and release or
a single payee check or joint payee check is given in exchange for the
waiver and release, the waiver and release shall follow substantially the
form:

CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE UPON "PROGRESS PAYMENT"

Upon receipt by the undersigned of a check from:

(Maker of Check)

in the sum of $ payable to:
(Amount of Check) (Payee or Payees of Check)

and when the check has been properly endorsed and has been paid by the bank upon which it is drawn,
this document shall become effective to release any mechanic's lien, stop notice, or bond right the
undersigned has on the job of

located at:
(CITY) (Job Description)

to the following extent. This release covers a progress payment for labor, services, equipment, or material
furnished to

through: (Your
Customer) (Date)

only and does not cover any retention's retained before or after the release date; extras furnished before
the release date for which payment has not been received; extras or items furnished after the release date.
Rights based upon work performed or items furnished under a written change order which has been fully
executed by the parties prior to the release date are covered by this release unless specifically reserved
by the claimant in this release. This release of any mechanic's lien, stop notice, or bond right shall not
otherwise affect the contract rights, including rights between parties to the contract based upon a
rescission, abandonment, or breach of the contract, or the right of the undersigned to recover
compensation for furnished labor, services, equipment, or material covered by this release if that
furnished labor, services, equipment, or material was not compensated by the progress payment. Before
any recipient of the document relies on it, said party should verify evidence of payment to the
undersigned.

(Company Name) (Date)

By: (Title)

Exclusions: Listing of Claims, of which Notice has been given:
1. Claim for: In the amount of: $

2. Claim for: In the amount of: $

3. Claim for: In the amount of: $

4. Claim for: In the amount of: $

5. Claim for: In the amount of: $




Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment D Page 30 of 59

2. Where the claimant is required to execute a waiver and release in exchange
for, or in order to induce payment of, a progress payment and the claimant
asserts in the waiver it has, in fact, been paid the progress payment, the
waiver and release shall follow substantially the following form:

UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE UPON "PROGRESS PAYMENT"

The undersigned has been paid and has received a progress payment in the sum of $ for
labor, services, equipment, or material furnished to

(Your Customer)

on the job of: located at:
(CITY) (Job Description

and does hereby release any mechanic's lien, stop notice, or bond right that the undersigned has on the
above referenced job to the following extent. This release covers a progress payment for labor, services,
equipment, or materials furnished to

through:
(Your Customer) (Date)

only and does not cover any retention's retained before or after the release date; extras furnished before
the release date for which payment has not been received; extras or items furnished after the release date.
Rights based upon work performed or items furnished under a written change order which has been fully
executed by the parties prior to the release date are covered by this release unless specifically reserved by
the claimant in this release. This release of any mechanic's lien, stop notice, or bond right shall not
otherwise affect the contract rights, including rights between parties to the contract based upon a
rescission, abandonment, or breach of the contract, or the right of the undersigned to recover
compensation for furnished labor, services, equipment, or material covered by this release if that
furnished labor, services, equipment, or material was not compensated by the progress payment.

(Company Name) (Date)

By: (Title)

Exclusions: Listing of Claims, of which Notice has been given:
1. Claim for: In the amount of: $

2. Claim for: In the amount of: $

3. Claim for: In the amount of: $

4. Claim for:; In the amount of: $

5. Claim for: In the amount of: $

"NOTICE: THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND STATES THAT
YOU HAVE BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS. THIS DOCUMENT IS
ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU IF YOU SIGN IT, EVEN IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN
PAID. IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A CONDITIONAL RELEASE FORM."



Resolution No. 2020-09

Attachment D Exhibit "A"
Page 31 of 59

3. Where the claimant is required to execute a waiver and release in exchange
for, or in order to induce the payment of, a final payment and the claimant is
not, in fact, paid in exchange for the waiver and release or a single payee
check or joint payee check is given in exchange for the waiver and release,
the waiver and release shall follow substantially the form:

CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE UPON "FINAL PAYMENT"

Upon receipt by the undersigned of a check from

in the sum of $ payable to:

and when the check has been properly endorsed and has been paid by the bank upon which it is drawn,
this document shall become effective to release any mechanic's lien, stop notice, or bond right the
undersigned has on the job of

located at:
(CITY) (Job Description)

This release covers the final payment to the undersigned for all labor, services, equipment, or material
furnished on the job, except for disputed claims for additional work in the amount of

$

Before any recipient of this document relies on it, the party should verify evidence of payment to the
undersined.

(Company Name) (Date)

By: (Title)

Exclusions: Listing of Claims, of which Notice has been given:
1. Claim for: In the amount of: $

2. Claim for: In the amount of: $

3. Claim for: In the amount of: $

4. Claim for: In the amount of: $

5. Claim for: In the amount of: $




Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment D Page 32 of 59

4. Where the claimant is required to execute a waiver and release in exchange
for, or in order to induce payment of, a final payment and the claimant
asserts in the waiver it has, in fact, been paid the final payment, the waiver
and release shall follow substantially the form:

UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE UPON "FINAL PAYMENT"

The undersigned has been paid in full for all labor, services, equipment or
material

furnished to:

(Your Customer)

on the job of: located at:
(CITY) (Job Description)

and does hereby waive and release any right to a mechanic's lien, stop notice, or any right against a
labor and material bond on the job, except for disputed claims for extra work in the amount of

$

(Company Name) (Date)

By: (Title)

Exclusions: Listing of Claims, of which Notice has been given:
1. Claim for: In the amount of: $

2. Claim for: In the amount of: $

3. Claim for: In the amount of: $

4. Claim for: In the amount of: $

5. Claim for: In the amount of: $

"NOTICE: THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND
STATES THAT YOU HAVE BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS. THIS
DOCUMENT IS ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU IF YOU SIGN IT, EVEN IF YOU
HAVE NOT BEEN PAID. IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A CONDITIONAL
RELEASE FORM."



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"

Attachment D Page 33 of 59

14.6 RETENTION. The City shall retain 5% percent of the estimated value of the work done
as part security for the fulfillment of the CONTRACT by the CONTRACTOR.

14.7 SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES, ESCROW ACCOUNT

A. Pursuant to the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 22300, upon
CONTRACTOR's request, the City will make payment to CONTRACTOR of any
earned retention funds withheld from payments under this Agreement if
CONTRACTOR deposits with the City or in escrow with a California or federally
chartered bank acceptable to the City, securities eligible for the investment
pursuant to Government Code Section 16430 or bank or savings and loan
certificates of deposit, upon the following conditions:

1. CONTRACTOR shall be the beneficial owner of any securities substituted
for monies withheld and shall receive any interest thereon.

2. All expenses relating to the substitution of securities under Section 22300
and under this Article, including, but not limited to the City's overhead and
administrative expenses, and expenses of the escrow agent shall be the
responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

3. If CONTRACTOR shall choose to enter into an escrow agreement, such
agreement form shall be provided by the City upon request, and which shall
allow for the conversion to cash to provide funds to meet defaults by the
CONTRACTOR including, but not limited to, termination of the
CONTRACTOR's control over the work, stop notices filed pursuant to law,
assessment of liquidated damages or amounts to be kept or retained under
the provisions of the Project Documents.

4. Securities, if any, shall be returned to CONTRACTOR only upon satisfactory
completion of the Agreement.

B. To minimize the expense caused by such substitution of securities,
CONTRACTOR shall, prior to or at the time CONTRACTOR requests to substitute
security, deposit sufficient security to cover the entire amount to be then withheld
and to be withheld under the General Conditions of this Agreement. Should the
value of such substituted security at any time fall below the amount for which it
was substituted, or any other amount which the City determines to withhold,
CONTRACTOR shall immediately and at CONTRACTOR's expense deposit
additional security qualifying under Section 22300 until the total security deposited
is no less than equivalent to the amount subject to withholding under the
Agreement.

C. In the alternative, under Section 22300, the CONTRACTOR may request City to
make payment of earned retentions directly to the escrow agent at the expense of
the CONTRACTOR. Also at the CONTRACTOR's expense, the CONTRACTOR
may direct investment of the payments in securities, and the CONTRACTOR shall
receive interest earned on such investment upon the same conditions as provided
for securities deposited by CONTRACTOR. Upon satisfactory completion of the
contract, CONTRACTOR shall receive from the escrow agent all securities, interest
and payments received by escrow agent from the City pursuant to the terms of



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment D Page 34 of 59

Section 22300. If CONTRACTOR elects to receive interest on monies withheld in
retention by the City, CONTRACTOR shall, at the request of any subcontractor,
make that option available to the subcontractor regarding any monies withheld in
retention by the CONTRACTOR from the subcontractor. If the CONTRACTOR
elects to receive any interest on any monies withheld in retention by the City, then
the subcontractor shall receive the identical rate of interest received by

the Contractor on any retention monies withheld from the subcontractor by the
CONTRACTOR, less any actual pro rata costs associated with administering and
calculating that interest. In the event the interest rate is a fluctuating rate, the rate
for the subcontractor shall be determined by calculating the interest rate paid during
the time that retentions were withheld from the subcontractor. If the CONTRACTOR
elects to substitute securities in lieu of retention, then, by mutual consent of the
CONTRACTOR and subcontractor, the subcontractor may substitute securities in
exchange for the release of monies held in retention by CONTRACTOR. This shall
apply only to those subcontractors performing more than five percent (5%) of the
CONTRACTOR's total bid. The CONTRACTOR shall not require any subcontractor
to waive any provision of this section.

D. If any provision of this Article shall be found to be illegal or unenforceable, then,
notwithstanding, the remainder of this Article shall remain in full force and effect,
and only such provision shall be deemed stricken.

14.8 CONTRACTOR'S WARRANTY OF TITLE, ASSIGNMENT OF ANTITRUST ACTIONS.
A. Public Contract Code Section 7103.5 provides:

1. In entering into a public works contract or a subcontract to supply goods,
services, or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the
CONTRACTOR or Subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the
awarding body (the City) all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of
action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Section 15)
or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of
Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from
purchases of goods, services, or materials pursuant to the public works
contract or the subcontract. This assignment shall be made and become
effective at the time the awarding body tenders final payment to the
CONTRACTOR, without further acknowledgment by the parties.

2. CONTRACTOR, for itself and all Subcontractors, agrees to assign to the City
all rights, title, and interest in and to all such causes of action
CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors may have under the Agreement. This
assignment shall become effective at the time the City tenders final payment
to the CONTRACTOR, and CONTRACTOR shall require assignments from
all Subcontractors to comply herewith.

14.9 REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT

A. The City's designee will, within 7 days after receipt of each Application for Payment,
either indicate approval by counter-signature on the application for progress
payment, or return the application to the CONTRACTOR indicating in writing the
City's reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, the



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment D Page 35 of 59

CONTRACTOR may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the application.
30 days after presentation of the Application for Payment with the City's
recommendation, the amount recommended will become due and when due, will be
paid by the City to the CONTRACTOR.

. The City may withhold a sufficient amount or amounts of any payment or payments
otherwise due to CONTRACTOR, as in its judgment may be necessary to cover:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Payments which may be past due and payable for just claims against
CONTRACTOR or any Subcontractors, or against and about the
performance of work on the Project.

The cost of defective or incomplete or damaged work which CONTRACTOR
has not remedied.

Liquidated damages assessed against CONTRACTOR.
Penalties for violation of labor laws.
The cost of materials ordered by the City pursuant to Article 13.

The cost of completion of this Agreement if there exists a reasonable doubt
that this Agreement can be completed for the balance then unpaid to
CONTRACTOR.

Damage caused by CONTRACTOR to another contractor.

Site clean-up provided by the City (or others on contract to the city) on behalf
of the CONTRACTOR for failure of the CONTRACTOR to provide timely and
adequate clean up as required by the Project Documents, in the opinion of
the City.

Payments to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless the City.

Any payments due to the City including but not limited to payments for failed
tests, utilities or imperfections.

Extra services for the Engineer, including but not limited to, services rendered
in the evaluation of CONTRACTOR substitution requests, Requests For
Information (RFI's), Change Order Requests (COR's) and Claims.

Extra services for the INSPECTOR including but not limited to re-inspection
required due to CONTRACTOR's failed tests or installation of unapproved or
defective materials and CONTRACTOR's requests for inspection and
CONTRACTOR's failure to attend the inspection, and work performed after
regular work hours, or during weekend and/or holidays.

Stop Notices/Liens have been filed in connection with the work and the City
has exercised its discretion to not accept a specific Bond intended to
discharge of such Liens.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment D Page 36 of 59

14. Claims by third party entities and/or individuals.
15. Persistent failure to comply with directions given to perform.

16. Costs and/or damages resulting from delay, termination and/or other causes
which increase or which may increase the City's costs in administering the
contract.

17. There are other items entitling the City to a set-off against the amount
recommended. City must give the CONTRACTOR written notice stating the
reasons for such action and pay the CONTRACTOR in the next application
for progress payment, the amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto
agreed to by the City and CONTRACTOR, when CONTRACTOR corrects to
the City's satisfaction the reason for such action.

C. If the above grounds are in the opinion of the City removed by or at the
expense of CONTRACTOR, payment shall be made for mounts withheld because of
them.

D. PAYMENTS WITHHELD. The City may apply such withheld amount or amounts to
payment of such claims or obligations at its discretion. In so doing, the City shall
make such payments on behalf of CONTRACTOR. If any payment is so made by
the City, then such amount shall be considered as a payment made under contract
by the City to CONTRACTOR and the City shall not be liable to CONTRACTOR for
such payments made in good faith. Such payments may be made without prior
judicial determination of claim or obligations. The City will render CONTRACTOR
an accounting of such funds disbursed on behalf of CONTRACTOR. To
minimize/avoid claims of interference and/or that proposed payment was improper,
the City shall endeavor to communicate to CONTRACTOR as to the
CONTRACTOR's opinion regarding any proposed payment to a third party
individual/entity, prior to City making the same. If CONTRACTOR fails to respond in
writing detailing the reason(s) for making any such payment within two (2) working
days, City shall have the right, but not the duty, to make any such payment without
concern that CONTRACTOR will later claim such payment was improper and/or
interfered with CONTRACTOR's relationship and/or prospective economic
advantage. In such event, all such claims by CONTRACTOR shall be deemed
waived.

E. As an alternative to payment of such claims or obligations, the City, in its sole
discretion, may reduce the total contract price as provided in the Article 13.

14.10 PARTIAL OCCUPATION /UTILIZATION

A. The City reserves the right to occupy buildings and/or portions of the site at any
time before completion, and such occupancy shall not constitute final acceptance of
any part of work covered by this Agreement, nor shall such occupancy extend the
date specified for completion of the work, nor shall any such occupancy affect any
liquidated damages. The City shall have the right to utilize or place into service any
item of equipment or other usable portion of the work prior to completion of the
work. Whenever the City plans to exercise said right, the CONTRACTOR will be



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 37 of 59
Attachment D

notified in writing by the City, identifying the specific portion or portions of the work
to be so utilized or otherwise placed into service.

B. It shall be understood by the CONTRACTOR that until such written notification is
issued, all responsibility for care and maintenance of all of the work shall be borne
by the CONTRACTOR. Upon issuance of said written notice of Partial Utilization,
the City will accept responsibility for the protection and maintenance of all such
items or portions of the work described in the written notice.

C. The CONTRACTOR shall retain full responsibility for satisfactory completion of the
work, regardless of whether a portion thereof has been partially utilized by the City,
and the CONTRACTOR's 1 year correction period shall commence only after the
date of Project Completion for the entire work.

14.11 PROJECT COMPLETION

A. The City shall accept completion of the Agreement and have the Notice of
Completion recorded when the entire work including CONTRACTOR's Punch
List(s) and City's final review comments shall have been completed to the
satisfaction of the City. The work may only be accepted as complete by action of
the Escondido City Council. Completion means final completion, and the concept of
substantial completion shall not apply to this Agreement.

B. However, the City, at its sole option, may accept completion of the Agreement and
have the Notice of Completion recorded when the entire work including individual
portions of the work shall have been completed to the satisfaction of the City,
except for minor corrective items, as distinguished from incomplete items.

C. Afinal walk through of the Project to determine completion of the Agreement and to
record the Notice of Completion shall occur only upon a valid claim by
CONTRACTOR that the Project is complete except for minor corrective items. Any
erroneous claims of completion by CONTRACTOR resulting in a premature walk
through shall be at CONTRACTOR's sole cost and expense and the City shall
make adjustments to the Contract Price by reducing the amount thereof to pay for
any costs incurred by the City due to the erroneous claims by the CONTRACTOR
that the Project is complete. Minor corrective items shall be identified in the final
walk through of the Project.

D. If the CONTRACTOR fails to complete the minor corrective items prior to the
expiration of the 35 day period immediately following recording of the Notice of
Compiletion, the City shall withhold from the final payment an amount equal to twice
the estimated cost, as determined by the City, of each item until such time as the
item is completed. At the end of such 35 day period, if there are items remaining to
be corrected, the City may elect to proceed as provided in the Article 13.

14.12 FINAL APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT. After the CONTRACTOR has completed all
of the work, the punch-list, and delivered all maintenance and operating instructions,
schedules, guarantees, Bonds, certificates of inspection, marked-up as-built record
documents and other documents, all as required by the Project Documents, and after
the Engineer and the City have indicated that the work is acceptable, the
CONTRACTOR may make application for final payment following the procedure for



14.13

Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment D Page 38 of 59

progress payments. The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied by all
documentation called for in the Contract Documents, together with complete and legally
effective unconditional waiver releases (Reference Article 14.5) by CONTRACTOR and
all SUBCONTRACTORS/suppliers that filed preliminary notices of all previous
progress payments, conditional waiver and release upon "final payment", and waivers or
releases of all Liens arising out of or filed in connection with the work.

FINAL PAYMENT AND ACCEPTANCE

A

If, on the basis of the City's observation of the work during construction and final
inspection, and the City's review of the final Application for Payment and
accompanying documentation, all as required by the Contract Documents, the City
is satisfied that the work has been completed and the CONTRACTOR's other
obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled, the City designee will
recommend payment of the final application for progress payment.

. After acceptance of the work by the Escondido City Council, the City will make

final disposition to the CONTRACTOR of the amount remaining after deducting all
prior payments and all amounts to be kept or retained under the provisions of
the Contract Documents, including the following items:

1. Liquidated damages, as applicable; and

2. Amounts withheld by the City under Article 14.9.B. which have not been
released.

. As a condition of final payment, the CONTRACTOR shall be required to

execute a release releasing the City from any and all claims of liability for payment
on the Project except for such amounts as may be specifically described and
excluded from the release.

14.14 RELEASE OF RETENTION AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS. After recording the Notice of
Completion with the San Diego County Recorder's Office to initiate the Lien period, and
not more than 55 calendar days thereafter, the City will release to the CONTRACTOR
the retention funds withheld pursuant to the Agreement, less any deductions to cover
pending claims against the City.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment E Page 39 of 59

ARTICLE 16 — CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS, WAIVER AND RELEASE FORMS, DISPUTES,

FALSE CLAIMS ACT.

16.1 CONTRACTOR CLAIMS

A

NOTICE. If the CONTRACTOR shall claim compensation for any damage sustained by
reason of the acts of the City or its agents, or if the CONTRACTOR disagrees with the
City's or Engineer's/Architect's decisions regarding a CONTRACTOR's Change Order
Request (COR), the CONTRACTOR shall provide written "Notice" to the City within 5
days after sustaining of such damage, or being notified of an adverse decision, and
provide within 14 days of the event the factual basis supporting the claim (unless
otherwise specified). The written "Notice" shall state the summary points for which the
factual bases will support the claim and cite in detail the Project Documents (including
plans and specifications) upon which the claim is to be based. CONTRACTOR's failure
to notify the City within such a period shall be deemed a waiver and relinquishment of
such a claim. If such notice is given within the specified time, the procedure for its
consideration shall be as stated above in these General Conditions.

WAIVER AND RELEASE FORMS. In addition, on or before the end of the month for
which the claim has been filed, the CONTRACTOR shall also file with the City the
WAIVER AND RELEASE FORMS, for which the claim and the amount of the claim is
identified. If the claim is not indicated on the WAIVER AND RELEASE FORMS,
CONTRACTOR's claim shall be forfeited and invalidated and it shall not be entitled to
consideration for time or payment on account of any such claim.

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION FOR CLAIMS FOR TIME: Fragnet — Sometimes known
as a "Sub-network". A Fragnet will be required for time impact analysis and time
extensions. CONTRACTOR's failure to provide a "Notice of Delay" within 24 hours, and
submit a Fragnet for time impact analysis and time extension(s) on or within 14 days of
the delaying event, shall forfeit and invalidate all considerations for time and/or payment.
The costs to prepare Fragnets and schedule updates resulting from approved Fragnets
are part of the work, regardless of number and difficulty. The City will provide a response
to the Fragnet on or within 14 days from the completed submission.

Except for tort claims, all claims by the CONTRACTOR for a time extension, payment of
money or damages arising from work done by, or on behalf of, the CONTRACTOR
pursuant to the Agreement and payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for
or the claimant is not otherwise entitled to, or as to the amount of payment which is
disputed by the City of $375,000 of less, is subject to the settlement and arbitration
provisions procedures set forth in Public Contract Code Section 20104, et seq. The text
of those provisions are provided in full in Article 17, which is attached and incorporated
herein by reference (Attachment F).

All of the following claims by the CONTRACTOR are subject to the claim resolution
procedures set forth in Public Contract Code Section 9204. The text of that section is
provided in full in Article 17.

1. A time extension;



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment E Page 40 of 59

2. Payment of money or damages arising from work done by, or on behalf of, the
CONTRACTOR pursuant to the Agreement and payment of which is not otherwise
expressly provided for, or CONTRACTOR is not otherwise entitled to; and

3. Payment of an amount that is disputed by the City.

Any claim must be a separate demand sent by registered mail or certified mail with
return receipt requested. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish reasonable documentation to
support the claim, which shall include all of the materials described in Section 16.1.

The City shall conduct a reasonable review of the claim within 45 days and shall provide
the CONTRACTOR a written statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed
and what portion is undisputed. The City and the CONTRACTOR may, by mutual
agreement, extend the time period for response. Any payment due on an undisputed
portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the City issues its
written statement.

If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to assert a claim
because of privity of contract does not exist, the CONTRACTOR may present a claim to
the City on behalf of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may
request in writing that the CONTRACTOR present a claim for work which was performed
by the subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The
subcontractor requesting that the claim be presented to the City shall furnish reasonable
documentation to support the claim, which shall include all of the materials described in
Section 16.1. Within 45 days of receipt of this written request, the CONTRACTOR shall
notify the subcontractor in writing as to whether the CONTRACTOR presented the claim
to the City. If the CONTRACTOR did not present the claim, the CONTRACTOR must
provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not presenting the claim to
the City.

16.2 DISPUTES —THE CITY'S AND ENGINEER'S DECISIONS

A.

If the CONTRACTOR disputes the City’s written response to the claim, or if the City
does not respond to the claim within the time prescribed, the CONTRACTOR may
demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues
in dispute. The CONTRACTOR must send the demand by registered mail or certified
mail, return receipt requested. Upon receipt, the City shall schedule a meet and confer
conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute.

If any portion of the claim remains in dispute after the meet and confer conference, the
City shall provide the CONTRACTOR a written statement identifying the potion of the
claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed within 10 business days
following the conclusion of the conference. Any payment due on an undisputed portion
of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the City issues its written
statement. Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by the CONTRACTOR in
writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation. The City shall conduct a reasonable
review of the claim within 45 days and shall provide the CONTRACTOR a written
statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is
undisputed. The City and the CONTRACTOR may, by mutual agreement, extend the
time period for response. Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall
be processed and made within 60 days after the City issues its written statement.



E.

Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment E Page 41 of 59

The City and CONTRACTOR shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business
days after the disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing. The City and
the CONTRACTOR shall share the associated costs of mediation equally. If the parties
cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator and those mediators
shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed portion
of the claim. Each party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator
in connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the
parts of the claim remaining in dispute shall be subject to applicable procedures outside
Section 9204. The mediation conducted shall excuse any further obligation under
Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been commenced.

Failure by the City to respond to a claim from the CONTRACTOR within the time periods
described above or to otherwise meet the time requirements described above shall
result in the claim being deemed rejected in its entirety.

Amounts not paid in a timely manner as outlined above will bear interest at 7% per year.

16.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT CERTIFICATION. All claims submitted by the CONTRACTOR shall

be accompanied by a notarized certificate containing the following language:

Under penalty perjury and with specific reference to the California False Claims
Act, Government Code Section 12650 et. seq., the undersigned,

(name)

of

(title)

(company)

hereby certifies that the claim for the additional compensation and time, if any,
made herein for the work on this Contract is a true statement of the actual costs
incurred or estimated future costs, and time sought, and is fully documented and
supported under the Agreement.

Dated

s/

Subscribed and sworn before me this day

of
Notary Public

My Commission Expires

Failure to submit the notarized certificate will be sufficient cause for denying the claim.



Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Page 42 of 59
Attachment F

ARTICLE 17 — MISCELLANEOUS

17.1

17.2

17.3

GIVING NOTICE

A. Any notice from one party to the other or otherwise under the Agreement shall
be in writing and shall be dated and signed by party giving such notice or by a
duly authorized representative of such party. Any such notice shall not be
effective for any purpose whatsoever unless served in one of the following
manners, and copied to the City:

1. If notice is given to the City, by personal delivery thereof to the City or by
deposit in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope
addressed to the City, and sent by registered or certified mail with
postage prepaid;

2. If notice is given to CONTRACTOR, by personal delivery thereof to said
CONTRACTOR or to CONTRACTOR's superintendent at the site of the
project, or by deposit in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed
envelope addressed to said CONTRACTOR at its regular place of
business or at such address as may have been established for the
conduct of work under this agreement, and sent by registered or certified
mail with postage prepaid;

3. If notice is given to the surety or other persons, by personal delivery to
such surety or other person or by deposit in the United States mail,
enclosed in a sealed envelope, addressed to such surety or person at the
address of such surety or person last communicated by the surety or
other person to the party giving notice, and sent by registered or certified
mail with postage prepaid.

TITLE TO MATERIALS FOUND ON THE WORK. The City reserves the right to retain title
to all soils, stone, sand, gravel, and other materials developed and obtained from
excavations and other operations connected with the work. Unless otherwise specified in
the Contract Documents, neither the CONTRACTOR nor any Subcontractor shall have any
right, title, or interest in or to any such materials. The CONTRACTOR will be permitted to
use in the work, without charge, any such materials which meet the requirements of the
Contract Documents.

RIGHT TO AUDIT. If the CONTRACTOR submits a claim to the City for additional
compensation, the City shall have the right, as a condition to considering the claim, and as
a basis for evaluation of the claim, and until the claim has been settled, to audit the
CONTRACTOR's documents and books to the extent they are relevant. This right shall
include the right to examine books, records, documents, and other evidence and
accounting procedures and practices, sufficient to discover and verify all direct and indirect
costs of whatever nature claimed to have been incurred or anticipated to be incurred and
for which the claim has been submitted. The right to audit shall include the right to inspect
the CONTRACTOR's plant, or such parts thereof, as may be or have been engaged in the
performance of the work. The CONTRACTOR further agrees that the right to audit
encompasses all subcontracts and is binding upon Subcontractors. The rights to examine
and inspect herein provided for shall be exercisable through such representatives as the
City deems desirable during the CONTRACTOR's normal business hours at the office of



174

17.5

17.6

17.7

17.8

17.9

Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"
Attachment F Page 43 of 59

the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall make available to the City for auditing, all
relevant accounting records and documents, and other financial data, and upon request,
shall submit true copies of requested records to the City.

SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and
guaranties made in, required by or given in accordance with the Contract Documents, as
well as all continuing obligations indicated in the Contract Documents, will survive final
payment, completion and acceptance of the work or termination or completion of the
Agreement.

CONTROLLING LAW. This agreement is to be governed by the law of the state of
California, in which the Project is located, with venue in North San Diego County.

SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this agreement is declared invalid or
unenforceable by any court of lawful jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions of the
Agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect.

WAIVER. The waiver by the City of any breach or violation of any term, covenant or
condition of this agreement or of any agreement provision, ordinance, or law shall not be
deemed to be a waiver of any other term, covenant, condition, ordinance, or law or of any
subsequent breach or violation of the same or of any other term, covenant, condition,
ordinance, or law. The subsequent payment of any monies or fee by the City which may
become due hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding breach or
violation by CONTRACTOR or any term, covenant, condition of this Agreement or of any
applicable law or ordinance.

PROHIBITED INTERESTS. No official of the City who is authorized in such capacity and
on behalf of the City to negotiate, make, accept, or approve, or to take part in negotiating,
making, accepting or approving any architectural, engineering, inspection, construction or
material supply contract or any subcontract in connection with construction of the Project,
shall become directly or indirectly interested financially in this project or in any part thereof.
No officer, employee, engineer, attorney, architect or inspector of or for City who is
authorized in such capacity and on behalf of the City to exercise any executive, supervisory
or other similar functions in connection with construction of project shall become directly or
indirectly interested financially in this Project or in any part thereof. CONTRACTOR shall
receive no compensation and shall repay the City for any compensation received by or
from CONTRACTOR hereunder, should CONTRACTOR aid, abet or knowingly participate
in violation of this Article.

California Public Contract Code § 9204. Legislative findings and declarations regarding
timely and complete payment of contractors for public works projects; claims process.

(@) The Legislature finds and declares that it is in the best interests of the state and its
citizens to ensure that all construction business performed on a public works
project in the state that is complete and not in dispute is paid in full and in a timely
manner.

(b)  Notwithstanding any other law, including, but not Ilimited to, Article 7.1
(commencing with Section 10240) of Chapter 1 of Part 2, Chapter 10 (commencing
with Section 19100) of Part 2, and Article 1.5 (commencing with Section 20104) of
Chapter 1 of Part 3, this section shall apply to any claim by a contractor in



Resolution No. 2020-09
Attachment F Exhibit "A"
Page 44 of 59

connection with a public works project.

(c)  For purposes of this section:

(1) “Claim” means a separate demand by a contractor sent by registered mail or
certified mail with return receipt requested, for one or more of the following:

A. A time extension, including, without limitation, for relief from damages
or penalties for delay assessed by a public entity under a contract for a
public works project.

B. Payment by the public entity of money or damages arising from work
done by, or on behalf of, the contractor pursuant to the contract for a
public works project and payment for which is not otherwise expressly
provided or to which the claimant is not otherwise entitled.

C. Payment of an amount that is disputed by the public entity.

(2) “Contractor” means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9
(commencing with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions
Code who has entered into a direct contract with a public entity for a public
works project.

(3) A. “Public entity” means, without limitation, except as provided in
subparagraph B., a state agency, department, office, division, bureau,
board, or commission, the California State University, the University of
California, a city, including a charter city, county, including a charter
county, city and county, including a charter city and county, district,
special district, public authority, political subdivision, public corporation,
or nonprofit transit corporation wholly owned by a public agency and
formed to carry out the purposes of the public agency.

B. “Public entity” shall not include the following:

(i) The Department of Water Resources as to any project under
the jurisdiction of that department.

(i) The Department of Transportation as to any project under the
jurisdiction of that department.

(iii) The Department of Parks and Recreation as to any project
under the jurisdiction of that department.

(iv) The Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation with respect
to any project under its jurisdiction pursuant to Chapter 11
(commencing with Section 7000) of Title 7 of Part 3 of the Penal
Code.

(v) The Military Department as to any project under the jurisdiction
of that department.

(vi) The Department of General Services as to all other projects.

(vii)  The High-Speed Rail Authority.

(4) “Public works project” means the erection, construction, alteration, repair, or
improvement of any public structure, building, road, or other public
improvement of any kind.

(5) “Subcontractor” means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9
(commencing with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and
Professions Code who either is in direct contract with a contractor or is a lower
tier subcontractor.

(d) (1) (A) Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, the public entity to which
the claim applies shall conduct a reasonable review of the claim and,

within a period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide the claimant a



(D)

(A)

(B)

Resolution No. 2020-09
Exhibit "A"

Attachment F Page 45 of 59

written statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed and
what portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of a claim, a public entity and
a contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period
provided in this subdivision.

The claimant shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the
claim.

If the public entity needs approval from its governing body to provide
the claimant a written statement identifying the disputed portion and
the undisputed portion of the claim, and the governing body does not
meet within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of
time following receipt of a claim sent by registered mail or certified
mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall have up to three
days following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the governing
body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to provide the
claimant a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the
undisputed portion.

Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be
processed and made within 60 days after the public entity issues its
written statement. If the public entity fails to issue a written statement,
paragraph (3) shall apply.

If the claimant disputes the public entity's written response, or if the
public entity fails to respond to a claim issued pursuant to this section
within the time prescribed, the claimant may demand in writing an
informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in
dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by registered mail or
certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall schedule
a meet and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the
dispute.

Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and
confer conference, if the claim or any portion of the claim remains in
dispute, the public entity shall provide the claimant a written statement
identifying the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the
portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed portion
of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the
public entity issues its written statement. Any disputed portion of the
claim, as identified by the contractor in writing, shall be submitted to
nonbinding mediation, with the public entity and the claimant sharing
the associated costs equally. The public entity and claimant shall
mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days after the
disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing. If the parties
cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator and
those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate
with regard to the disputed portion of the claim. Each party shall bear
the